v FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REBEKRERAER2F

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (J2 & ik it il 7 2 A R Zs Al)
(Stock Code JB Ay 3% : 2310)

P Moving Forward © 5 ] §i

Annual Report 2013 43

I
¥ \
4 | )
% il CANADA
Ji' ! l_ \ EUROPE
J UNI;ED STATES \
. ' 1 ' -~ :
\ AFRICA \ \n_
B . . -~




Contents

H &

02
04
10
20
35
41
53
55

57
59
61
63
65
185
186

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report
Directors and Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five-year Financial Summary

Corporate Information and Shareholders’ Calendar

PA5 A

B

7 T i B A
SRR &
EHEEEEEAR
EHGWNE

T ST AZ SRR

AR M A A
e

A BRI R

B IR DL 3R
EeREN L LS
GEBlERER

S R B

TLAF 5

2N VR SRR H R R




02

Forebase International Holdings Limited 3t B % ¥ ik % IR 2 5]

Financial Highlights
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Note 2013 2012 % Change
BiF T “E = e St S BEIE T
Results E 3
HK$'000 Tt
Revenue LhE 298,722 475,174 -37.1%
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLET (s18) i (55,753) (51,187) 8.9%
(Loss) profit after taxation EN/NGIE: 2SN A
attributable to owners FRBiE UEs1R) A
of the Company (51,656) (52,339) -1.3%
Assets and Liabilities & e A 1
HK$'000 Tk T
Total assets HMEE 348,370 282,222 23.4%
Total liabilities AR 228,303 115,452 97.7%
Shareholders’ equity JE A 4 120,067 166,770 -28.0%
Per Share Data (5344 187
HK cents Al
Basic (loss) earnings HA (F18) JF) (15.95) (16.16) -1.3%
Diluted (loss) earnings HEE (1R) &A (15.95) (16.16) -1.3%
HKS$ oW
Net asset value B FE 0.37 0.51 -27.5%
Financial Ratio JiLp7 3
Current ratio T R 1 2.56 1.93 32.6%
Quick ratio ) LR 2.19 1.68 30.4%
Notes: BT -
1)  Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities. 1) U EeReds i) R B LA ) A £
2)  Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided by 2) R HARIE N RLEAE B R R A R AR ) AL

current liabilities.
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The year 2013 has been a significant year for the Group.
Corporate changes signify business diversification
and bring in new revenue sources
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Chairman’s Statement
FREgEE

MOVING FORWARD e B j® 1] Fi

During the year, the successful acquisition of the overseas

hotel properties affirms that the Group is dynamic and

energetic with a vision for the future development.

RENFEBMRDGHENEEY X SIETAEBREET D
T 1 5L SI6 R 2K 0 3% R 3 1 A O A% e

YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The year 2013 has been a significant year for Forebase
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kwang
Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited) (the“Company”). Corporate
changes signify business diversification and bring in new
revenue sources.

On 11 December 2012, Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”)
completed the acquisition of 174,082,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (representing approximately 53.75% of the total
issued share capital of the Company). After the general offer was
closed on 4 January 2013, Ultra Harvest held 243,601,950 shares
(representing approximately 75.21% of the total issued share
capital of the Company) and became the controlling shareholder
of the Company. In March 2013, the Company was renamed as
“Forebase International Holdings Limited H1 3% B B4 B A BR A
] ”and stock short names for trading in the shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited were changed to “FOREBASE
INTL F1 5 % .

In January 2013, on the other hand, the new management team
and directors were reconstituted with diversities of background
and experience; including property development, hotel
management, corporate finance and banking. After review of the
Group’s businesses activities, apart from the major continuing
electronics operations, the Group extended its principal activities
to include properties investment.
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In November 2013, the Group acquired the assets of the
Brentwood Bay Resort & SPA (the “Resort”), a small luxury
four-diamond hotel in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. It is
a 3-storey resort, having 33 quest rooms, with restaurants and
bar lounges, a spa, a marina situated adjacent to the Resort at
Brentwood Bay. It already has a top reputation with many awards
and honor and most welcomed by the domestic and foreign
travelers around the world.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenue represents sales of goods, rental income under
operating lease and service income from hotel operation. Sales
of goods accounted for approximately 98.0% (2012: 99.4%) of
the total revenue and the remaining 2.0% was related to the
properties investment and hotel operation (new segment) in
aggregate. The Group’s total revenue was HK$298,722,000 (2012:
HK$363,553,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.8%
due to the continuous fall in customer demand for electronic
components business as keen competition in the traditional
consumer electronics markets and the weak consumer
sentiment.

Gross profit decreased by approximately HK$18,200,000 to
approximately HK$5,800,000 and gross profit margin decreased
from 6.6% to 1.9%. The decrease was contributed by the
continuous pressure in pricing of its electronic components.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREgEE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group anticipates that the consumer
electronics market is still stagnant and the demand for electronic
components will remain challenging with no signs of recovery.
The rising trend in costs of both labour and materials is expected
to continue to place repeated pressure on profit margin. To
cope with the challenges of intense competition and hostile
environment, the Group will adopt appropriate business
strategies to weaken continuing impacts from these tough
conditions and to inspire a turnaround for the Group. The Group
expects that its turnaround strategy will eventually help deliver
competitive returns to the Company’s shareholders in the long
term.

As announced on 20 November 2013, the Group completed
the acquisition of a resort in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada
as the Group’s hotel operation with a view to enhancing the
regular and recurring revenue stream of the Group. The business
performance of the hotel operation for the year has been
satisfactory. In the long run, the Group will re-brand the hotel
and strive to boost up average annual hotel occupancy and hotel
revenue in all aspects by introducing tourists from the Mainland
and other countries.

The Company is considering certain acquisition targets at present
which, when materialized and completed, should improve the
Group’s assets base and financial position. The Company will
make further announcement should any acquisition materialize
to comply with the Listing Rules as and when required.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express the sincere
thanks and appreciation to our shareholders, business partners
and dedicated management and staff for their continued support
and valuable contributions to the Group.

Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

B iﬂ = DTHHH 7N \*ﬁ:

In the long run, the Group will re-brand the hotel and
strive to boost up average annual hotel occupancy
and hotel revenue in all aspects by introducing tourists
from the Mainland and other countries.
TEfRIEATE > A B SRS E SR - F13 K
FIAEAC [ T b B HAt B 5 A 2 R DA SR THIE T

IR AT Z L 3G I A R BRI A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5006 8 95 B

We are currently evaluating the operations in detail and are

formulating appropriate business strategies to enhance our

business growth and optimise our asset base, as well as develop

new income sources through investment or acquisition at

the appropriate time aimed at maximising the returns of our

shareholders.

A B B Ik v A AF A S E RS 0 BlE 2 R KB RN - D E X

o0& R B AL & AR
AR+ e e R [l ke

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents sales of goods, rental income under
operating lease and service income from hotel operation. Sales
of goods accounted for approximately 98.0% (2012: 99.4%) of
the total revenue. Revenue decreased by 17.8% to approximately
HK$298,722,000 from approximately HK$363,553,000 in 2012
which was mainly due to the fall in customer demand for electronic
components business. Following completion of acquisition of
a resort in Canada on 20 November 2013, a new segment —
hotel operation was introduced this year which contributed
approximately HK$4,376,000, 1.4% of the total revenue.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$46,616,000 or
13.7% to approximately HK$292,923,000 which was in line with
the drop in revenue.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by approximately HK$18,215,000 to
approximately HK$5,799,000 and gross profit margin decreased
from 6.6% to 1.9%. The decrease was due to the continuous
pressure in pricing of its electronic components.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by approximately
HK$4,006,000 or 46.3% from approximately HK$8,649,000 in
2012 to approximately HK$4,643,000 in 2013. The decrease in
other income and gains was primarily due to the fact that there
was a decrease in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss by approximately HK$5,908,000 in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses slightly increased by approximately
1,890,000 or 3.3% from approximately HK$56,707,000 in 2012
to HK$58,597,000 in 2013. The increase was mainly due to net
effect of increase in administrative expenses of approximately
HK$13,249,000 arising from increase in payroll and office
expenses for new management in Hong Kong office and
decrease in selling and distribution expenses of approximately
HK$1,446,000, research and development expenses of
approximately HK$3,536,000 and other operating expenses of
approximately HK$6,377,000 arising from decrease in sales of
electronics components during the year.

Finance Costs

The increase of finance costs was mainly due to the interest on
the 13% guaranteed senior secured notes of HK$1,679,000.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense represented a net tax credit of approximately
HK$4,097,000 as compared to income tax expenses of
approximately HK$3,848,000 in last year as there was
over-provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax of approximately
HK$5,879,000 in prior years.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing was combined effects of the above,
the Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$51,656,000.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net current assets and
current ratio were approximately HK$110,835,000 and 2.56
respectively (2012: approximately HK$97,294,000 and 1.93). The
increase in current ratio mainly reflected the percentage decrease
in current liabilities was higher than percentage decrease in
current assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CRLNTEIET

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$77,866,000 (2012:
approximately HK$110,250,000).

F N

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$10,007,000 (2012: approximately
HK$11,009,000), the investment properties of approximately
HK$20,223,000 (2012: approximately HK$46,492,000) and
the land and buildings held for own use of approximately
HK$108,655,000 (2012: Nil) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to and note issued by the Group.

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group financed its
liquidity requirements through a combination of cash flow as
generated from operations, bank borrowings, secured note,
advances from director and ultimate holding company.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no capital commitments
(2012: approximately HK$88,000) and approximately
HK$22,290,000 as operating lease commitments (2012:
approximately HK$10,414,000). As at 31 December 2013, the
Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2012:
Nil).

Material Acquisitions

Save for the major acquisition of relevant assets pertaining to
the operation of a resort on 20 November 2013, the Group did
not have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Composite Electronic Components Business

During the year ended 31 December 2013, consumer demand for
traditional electronics market has not recovered. Slowdown in
the demand for traditional electronic goods resulted in shrinkage
of the production orders of related manufacturing industries.
Accordingly, turnover from the composite components business
decreased by approximately HK$53,507,000 or approximately
26.9% from approximately HK$199,257,000 in 2012 to
approximately HK$145,750,000 in 2013. The decrease was mainly
attributable to decrease in sales of tuner modules for home
audios and sales of dual docking systems. The turnover amount
represented approximately 48.8% of the Group’s total turnover.
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Unit Electronic Components Business

Turnover from the unit electronic components business also
decreased by approximately HK$15,284,000 or approximately
9.4% from approximately HK$162,218,000 in 2012 to
approximately HK$146,934,000 in 2013. The decrease was
mainly due to sluggish demand from TV market for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The turnover amount represented
approximately 49.2% of the Group’s total turnover.

Property Investment Business

For the year ended 31 December 2013, turnover from the
property investment business decreased by approximately
HK$416,000 or approximately 20% from approximately
HK$2,078,000 in 2012 to approximately HK$1,662,000 in 2013.
The decrease was due to disposal of the Group’s investment
properties in Korea. The turnover amount represented
approximately 0.6% of the Group’s total turnover.

Hotel Operation Business

On 20 November 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of a
resort in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada, this is a new business
segment. The turnover contributed by the hotel operation for
the year was amounted to approximately HK$4,376,000 which
represented 1.4% of the Group’s total turnover.
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Management Discussion

5006 8 95 B

Business Review

5 15 o] g

600,000

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 970
employees, including 840 based in the PRC, 40 based in
Hong Kong and 90 based in Canada. Staff costs for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were approximately HK$76,194,000,
representing an increase of approximately HK$21,794,000 as
compared to approximately HK$54,400,000 of last year.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), United States Dollars (“US$”) and Korean Won
(“KRW”). Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investment
in foreign operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not
enter into any forward foreign currency contracts (2012: Nil).

and Analysis

Turnover of Composite Components Business
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Turnover of Unit Electronic Components Business
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Prospects

Looking forward, the Group anticipates that the consumer
electronics market is still stagnant and the demand for electronic
components will remain challenging with no signs of recovery. The
rising trend in costs of both labour and materials is expected to
continue to place repeated pressure on profit margin. To cope with
the challenges of intense competition and hostile environment,
the Group will adopt appropriate business strategies to weaken
continuing impacts from these tough conditions and to inspire a
turnaround for the Group. The Group expects that its turnaround
strategy will eventually help deliver competitive returns to the
Company’s shareholders in the long term.

As announced on 20 November 2013, the Group completed
the acquisition of a resort in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada
as the Group’s hotel operation with a view to enhancing the
regular and recurring revenue stream of the Group. The business
performance of the hotel operation for the year has been
satisfactory. In the long run, the Group will re-brand the hotel
and strive to boost up revenue in all aspects by introducing
tourists from the Mainland and other countries.

The Company is considering certain acquisition targets at present
which, when materialized and completed, should improve the
Group’s assets base and financial position. The Company will
make further announcement should any acquisition materialize
to comply with the Listing Rules as and when required.
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Investor Relations

F N

The Company values its relationship with investors, and guided
by its management philosophy, is committed to maintaining
transparency of operational performance and strategic
development plans. The management communicates continually
with analysts and institutional investors and provides them with
up-to-date comprehensive information regarding the Company’s
development. The Company practices timely dissemination of
information and makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk contains
the most current information, including annual reports, interim
reports, announcements, monthly returns and press releases, and
is updated in a timely manner to maintain transparency.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a caring corporation, the Group has been active in fulfilling
its social responsibility to the interest of all stakeholders and
society. The Group’s corporate social responsibility efforts fall
into the three following categories:

Marketplace

In the interest of shareholders, the Group adheres to the
business objectives of contributing to the sustainable
development of the electronics industry, improving consumer
electronics to heighten product efficiency and delivering the
best end-user experience. To these ends, the Group invests
substantially in research and development and internal quality
control to ensure the continuous delivery of quality and reliable
products to customers. The Company complies with the
requirements of ISO/TS 16949:2002 on design and manufacture
of its car tuners and ISO 9001:2000 on production and servicing
of electronic products. These products include transformers,
intermediate frequency transformers, antennas, filters, coils,
coil inductors, electrical meters, dielectric filters, tuners, tuner
modules, wireless modules, switching mode power supplies,
digital tuner modules for DAB and digital amplifiers. The Group
has also frequently received customers’ performance certificates
that signified recognition of the Group’s professional procedures
and appreciation of product quality.

The Group recognises the need and the cross-fertilisation
benefits of collaboration between industry and academia. It
hopes to ride on the resources of universities and selected
research institutes to customise training courses and
programmes that can help develop the business and professional
competence of its people in successfully competing globally. In
return, the Group provides consultancy services, financial aid
and internships to university students.
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Employee Health and Welfare

Caring about the health and work safety of its staff, the Group
has introduced appropriate safety systems and processes to
minimise staffs exposure to potential hazardous materials
or adverse working conditions. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group strives to provide a fair work environment
to employees and does not tolerate any form of harassment
or discrimination in respect of employment and occupation.
To retain the best talents, the Group ensures its employee
remuneration packages are competitive and that rewards are
linked with performance excellence.

The Group also encourages employees to enroll in external job-
related courses and sponsors these initiatives when appropriate.
As part of the orientation procedure, all new employees are
required to participate in programmes on topics include
internal control and information protection, ISO and quality
management systems.

The Group also arranges regular health checks for all employees
to protect their health and therefore maintain their productivity
at work. In case of sickness, employees are protected by
comprehensive group medical insurance policies. Retirement and
comprehensive pension funds are also provided to employees in
accordance to relevant legislation.

Environment and Community

The Company complies with the requirements of ISO 14001:2004
on environmental management systems and procedures.

The Group also continues to make sure its products comply
with the European Union’s environmental protection guidelines
including the Directive on the Restriction of the use of certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical Equipment (“RoHS”) for
manufacturing activities. All products manufactured by the
Group are lead-free and RoHS compliant.

The Group also encourages employees to save energy and
resources. To cut down on paper consumption, the Group
encourages double-sided printing and printing when necessary
only. The Group also relays energy-saving tips to staff members
through a daily learning programme. To fulfill its commitment
to the society during the year, the Company has also provided
donations to charities to help the needy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard
of practices of corporate governance so as to ensure the
protection of shareholders’ interests with better transparency.
The Company has complied with the code provisions (the
“CP”) of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2013, except for the following:

Code Provision A.6.7

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal Board
members, should attend the general meetings of the Company.

The Company held its extraordinary general meeting on
25 February 2013 (“the EGM”) and annual general meeting on
30 May 2013 (the “AGM”). During the year ended 31 December
2013, certain independent non-executive directors were
unable to attend the Company’s general meetings due to their
unavoidable business engagements.

The Company will continue to create excellent conditions for
independent non-executive directors and (if any) non-executive
directors to attend general meetings, so as to support non-
executive directors to respond to shareholders” questions in the
general meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. Due to other business engagements,
the chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
conducting securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to all
directors of the Company, confirmed that during the year ended
31 December 2013, all directors have complied with the CP as
set out in the Model Code. The relevant employees who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information, have been requested to
comply with the provisions of the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board,
which currently comprises eleven members, coming from diverse
businesses and professional backgrounds. The biographical
details of directors are set out under the section “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 35 to 40 of this annual report.
The Board currently comprises executive directors Mr. Shen Yong
(Chairman), Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Li Zhi,
Mr. Xu Li Jian, Mr. Leung Kin Pang and Mr. Hong Sang Joon and
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying,
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has established
a schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The specific
responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a) setting the
Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving budgets,
reviewing operational and financial performance; (c) approving
major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the Board has ensured that (a)
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have
been adopted; (b) appropriate accounting policies have been
used and applied consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include five corporate governance related committees namely
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee as well as one
ad hoc committee namely the Independent Board Committee
which is responsible for advising the matters in relation to the
continuing connected transactions. These committees operate
within specific terms of reference as prepared by the Company
and report their work and findings to the Board regularly.

DIRECTORS” ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of the directors at Board Meetings,
Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Meeting,
Executive Committee Meetings, Nomination Committee
Meeting, Independent Board Committee Meeting and General
Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
below:

YRy RIS R 2 JR I i > AN W] B A
ZHEFAFHETNEZAE - ZFELZAGUEL
MEAEERARNEZAS  MRITZAE
HMEZ RS ERZARGMEXAZAEE > DK
— i A T B IR A R E R
T By ERLEE ZERTHBFHERA
0% R B B 2 R WA R [ SR Sl L Y 1) B
B MEH A 2 TAE B A 458

R A e

HE-EZ =244+ A=+ HILEERN, &
NEFNEFTTHE  FEEZE TR
ZETO®R WOTRETER RAZETE
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No. of meetings attended/held

L1748 Jit/e
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration ~ Executive Nomination —Committee General
Board Committee Committee ~Committee ~Committee ~ HU#EF  meeting
#HE  HWZEE  FMEREE WGHZEE  RAZEE ZRE  BAAE

Executive directors g

Mr. ShenYong’ GE Y 79 n/a n/a 0/0 nfa 0/0 012
i i A

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas A 911 n/a n/a 0/0 nla 000 02
i i il

Mr. Shen Ke Gilp e 911 n/a nla 000 n/a 000 02
i il A

Mr. Li Zhi RS 1 n/a nla 00 nla 00 012
i i A

M. Xu Li Jian TR Bt 10111 nla nla 0/0 nla 0/0 112
i b A

Mr. Leung Kin Pang Uil e 111 nfa nfa 010 nfa 010 20
i il A

Mr.Yang Jai Sung* Uit n nfa nfa 010 nfa 010 nfa
N il A A

Mr. Lee KyuYoung* LD n nfa nfa 010 nfa 00 nfa
R Nt A AR

Mr. Hong Sang Joon WA 911 nfa nfa 00 nfa 010 212
Nt Nt A

Non-executive director FHfES

Mr.Yang Ho Sung* AR e n nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa

IS il

A A A A AN
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No. of meetings attended/held

@k BRY
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration ~ Executive Nomination —Committee General
Board Committee Committee ~Committee ~Committee ~ BV#ZH  meeting

B0 BHZAE  WMZRE  WNZAE  RAZRA ZHE  BORAE

Independent non-executive B FFBITHEF

directors
Mr. Y Lei” RERE 8/10 212 33 n/a 11 0/0 012
AN
Dt.JiangYing' L 71 0 33 nla 1" 010 02
R
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan* RARWLL 8/10 21 33 nla 1n 0/0 012
AER
Mr. Emnst Rudolf Zimmermann® #3084 719 2 3/3 n/a mn 000 202
AN
Dr. Han Byung Joon* HREHL n nfa nfa nla nfa 000 nfa
i i i N N
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon* ST 17 nla nla nla nla 0/0 n/a
A Nl Nl RER RER
Mr. Kim Chan Su* K%t/ e mn na na nfa nfa 000 nla
Nl Nl Nl Nl A
resigned on 7 January 2013 * &= B HEHE
appointed on 7 January 2013 * AR A EH R
appointed on 18 January 2013 ! hE S AT AN HERAE

Set out below are the summarised key components of corporate AR B IR AR 2 AR SE R WAL A RS
governance practices adopted by the Company. AR -

BOARD COMMITTEES HHEEY

The Board has established five board committees, namely, FREEOUNILMERZA G NPT EAR
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, g HMEREE  RAZEE FREAER
the Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee and the WY EFEZEEG > UEERAFAS B -
Independent Board Committee, for overseeing particular aspects JIT A e B R gl R R o e ) o o
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees should report to e

the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

A. Executive Committee A. HITEREG
¥ @

The Executive Committee currently comprises Mr. Shen
Yong (Committee Chairman), Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, i
Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Li Zhi, Mr. Xu Li Jian, Mr. Leung Kin "
Pang and Mr. Hong Sang Joon. H AR o
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The major responsibilities of the Executive Committee are:

1. to develop strategic plans for the consideration of the
Board;

2. toimplement the strategies and policies of the Group
as determined by the Board;

3. to monitor the daily operations and financial results
against plans and budgets; and

4. to guide the Company in various corporate affairs.

There were three Executive Committee meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to discuss strategies and
policies of the Group and monitor the daily operations and
financial results against plans and budgets.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive directors Mr.Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1.  toreview the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

3. to review and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.

There was one Remuneration Committee meeting
held for the year ended 31 December 2013 to review
the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management according to the Group’s employment policy,
nomination policy, remuneration policy, and training and
development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named
basis and members of senior management by band are
disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive directors Mr.Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

1.  to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

2. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

3. to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

4. toreview the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on
the basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.

There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1.  the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

2. the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
reelection at the previous general meeting;

3. procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

4. independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive directors Ms. Zhang Cui Lan
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Yu Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1.  to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

2. to review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

3. to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1.  the 2012 annual report and accounts;
the 2013 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4. the findings of the internal control review report
prepared by external independent professionals;

5. the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditors; and

6.  the auditors’ remuneration and recommended the
Board to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
as Company’s auditors in the year 2014, which
is subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Board Committee

The Independent Board Committee currently comprises
four independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei
(Committee Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan
and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.
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The major responsibilities of the Independent board
committee are:

1. to consider and review matters regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group; and

2. to advise the independent shareholders whether the
Group’s transactions are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and shareholders as a
whole.

There was no Independent Board Committee meeting held
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

1.  todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
officers of the Group;

3. toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct
applicable to employees and the directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board considered
the following corporate governance matters:

1.  review of the compliance with the CP of the CG Code; and
2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and

risk management systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
Secretary, Mr. Tang Sze Lok, has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biographical details of the Company
Secretary is set out on in the section entitled “Directors and
Senior Management”in this annual report.

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND
CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the corporate governance code
of the Company and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training effective from 1 April
2012. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided their training records to the Company.

DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
no claim had been made against the directors and the officers of
the Company.
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The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Shen Yong, and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, is clearly defined and has been approved
by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership of the Board,
ensures the effectiveness of the Board and oversees the corporate
development; while the Chief Executive Officer, as head of the
executive directorate, is responsible for managing the business
development and strategic planning of the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.

Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s) among members of the Board except that
Mr. Shen Yong, chairman of the Board is the father of Mr. Shen
Ke, an executive director of the Company.

The directors are given access to independent professional advice
at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it necessary in
order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent non-
executive directors and (if any) non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group and their training
programmes and relevant budget.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with the Group’s internal
control system. The system is designed in consideration of the
nature of business and the organisation structure. The system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
operational system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
is designed further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reporting, achieve
efficiency of operations and ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The Group will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review its internal control system and further
enhance its internal control as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to
appoint external independent professionals to perform internal
audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless,
the Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function annually.

DIRECTORS” AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the
Group’s external auditors. The statement by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
53 to 54 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
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provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows: S EAT T AL B 2 B T
HK$'000
Nature of services JIR PR Tt
Audit services B 515
Non-audit services IE RS
Other services HoAth fiRBs 780

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information and
makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk contains the most latest
information, including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

A.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition at least 5% of the
voting rights at general meetings of the Company, may
request the directors of the Company to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board or the
Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 551 to 554
(written resolutions), section 579 (notice of resolutions),
sections 580 to 583 (statements), section 615, section 616
(resolutions for AGMs) of the Companies Ordinance for
including a resolution at AGM of the Company AGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out as follows:

1. A member of a company may request the company to
circulate a resolution that—

(@) may properly be moved; and
(b) is proposed as a written resolution under
section 549(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

If a member requests a company to circulate a
resolution, the member may request the company
to circulate with the resolution a statement of not
more than 1,000 words on the subject matter of the
resolution.

However, each member may only request the
company to circulate one such statement with respect
to the resolution.

2. A company must circulate a resolution proposed
as a written resolution under section 549(b) of the
Companies Ordinance and any statement mentioned
in section 551(2) of the Companies Ordinance if it
has received requests that it do so from the members
of the company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote
on the resolution (or a lower percentage specified for
this purpose in the company’s articles).

A request-

(@) may be sent to the company in hard copy form
or in electronic form;

(b) must identify the resolution and any statement
mentioned in section 551(2) of the Companies
Ordinance; and

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it.
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If by any provision of this Ordinance special notice is
required to be given of a resolution, the resolution is
not effective unless notice of the intention to move it
has been given to the company at least 28 days before
the meeting at which it is moved.

The company must, if practicable, give its members
notice of the resolution at the same time and in the
same manner as it gives notice of the meeting.

If that is not practicable, the company must give its
members notice of the resolution at least 14 days
before the meeting—

(@) by advertisement in a newspaper circulating
generally in Hong Kong; or

(b) in any other manner allowed by the company’s
articles.

If, after notice of the intention to move the resolution
has been given to the Company, a meeting is called
for a date 28 days or less after the notice has been
given, the notice is to be regarded as having been
properly given, though not given within the time
required.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be processed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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Directors and Senior Management

EHkmEERAR
CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yong

Mr. Shen Yong, aged 51, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board and an executive director on 18 January 2013. He is
a director and a shareholder of Ultra Harvest, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, holding 60% of its issued shares.
Mr. Shen has more than 15 years of experience in hotel and
commercial properties development, as well as investment,
corporate and general management.

Mr. Shen completed a postgraduate (advanced studies) course in
laws (civil and commercial law) from the Southwest University
of Politics and Law (P4 RgEL%KER) in July 2000.

Mr. Shen served as a deputy to the 1st to 3rd Chongqing
Municipal People’s Congress in the PRC. Mr. Shen is currently
a member of the 4th Chongqing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC
and a deputy chairman of the Chongqing Municipal Federation
of Industry and Commerce (General Chamber). Mr. Shen is the
father of Mr. Shen Ke, an executive director of the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, aged 62, is an executive director of the
Company. On 18 January 2013, he was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company. He has previously held various
senior managerial positions within the ACCOR Hotel Group
(including executive posts in Sofitel Forebase, Chongqing, China,
Sofitel Minneapolis, the United States of America, Novotel
Bangna, Bangkok, Thailand and Sofitel Raja Orchid, Khon Kaen,
Thailand); Howard Johnson Plaza, Shanghai, China; Shangri-
La’s EDSA Plaza, Manila, Philippines; Holiday Inn Golden Mile,
Hong Kong throughout his long career in the industry.

Mr. Podlas has a wealth of experience in the hospitality
investment and management; in particular, the luxury hotel
sector. His portfolio in the hospitality industry covers various
countries around the globe.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Shen Ke, aged 24, is an executive director of the Company.
He is a director and a shareholder of Ultra Harvest as to 40%
shareholding. Mr. Shen has over 5 years of experience in the
hospitality investment and management in the PRC.

Mr. Shen is the son of Mr. Shen Yong, the chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Zhi

Mr. Li Zhi, aged 52, is an executive director of the Company. He
has over 10 years of management experience in the hospitality
investment and management in the PRC. Mr. Li graduated from
a postgraduate course in management and administration from
Chongging Youth Administrative Cadres College (T & ¥ 4F & #iL
W)

Mr. Xu Li Jian

Mr. Xu Li Jian, aged 49, is an executive director of the Company.
He has extensive experience in legal practice, banking and
finance and real estate businesses in the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor degree in laws from the Northwest
University of Politics and Law (P§ILEL#L K EL) in 1985 and a
master degree in world economics from the Nankai University

(R BKEL) in 2001.

Mr. Leung Kin Pang

Mr. Leung Kin Pang, aged 32, is an executive director of the
Company. He has over 7 years of experience in investment and
fund management.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor degree in Economics and
Finance from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree
in Global History from the London School of Economics and
Politics Science, and a master degree in Politics of the World
Economy from the London School of Economics and Politics
Science.
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Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Mr. Hong Sang Joon, aged 45, is an executive director of the
Company. He holds positions as director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company, and is responsible for operational management
of the Group’s electronic business. He has over 19 years of
experience in investment, restructuring, strategic planning, and
financial management and control.

Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor degree in Chinese language and
Chinese literature, minoring in business administration from
Yonsei University in Korea, and a master degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong. He is a
CFA Charterholder, Certified FRM, and U.S. CPA for public
practice licensed by Washington State Board of Accountancy in
U.S.A,, and he is a regular member of CFA Institute, The Hong
Kong Society of Financial Analysts, Global Association of Risk
Professionals, and American Institute of CPAs.

Mr. Hong is currently an executive director of Siberian Mining
Group Company Limited (Stock code: 1142) whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Lei

Mr. Yu Lei, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 7 January 2013. He has extensive
experience in the real estate industry and infrastructure sectors
in the PRC.

Mr. Yu obtained his bachelor degree in economics and a master
degree in management from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (F g BF£&8 B KEL) in 1993 and 1999
respectively. Mr. Yu is also a qualified accountant conferred by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and a Certified Internal Auditor
conferred by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. Yu is currently a president assistant of Shenzhen Zhuojia
Industry Groups Co., Ltd. (I S EEHELEARA
7]), a company specializing in real estate and infrastructure
development and the provision of investment services in the
PRC. During March 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Yu was employed
as the president assistant of Great China International Group
(China) Limited (K # B BRI () A B2 A]) which
is principally engaged in property, hotel, commercial and
infrastructure investment and development.
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Mr. Yu was an independent non-executive director of China
Nuclear Industry 23 International Corporation Limited (Stock
code: 611) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Dr. Jiang Ying
Dr. Jiang Ying, aged 48, was appointed as an independent

non-executive director on 7 January 2013. He has extensive
experience in the educational work in the PRC.

Dr. Jiang obtained her bachelor degree in economics, master
degree in world economics and doctorate degree in political
economics from the Sichuan University (P4)1] K£2) in 1985,
1988 and 2003 respectively. Dr. Jiang has been employed as a
professor in International Economics in the School of Economics
in Sichuan University (/41| K £%) since 30 October 2001.

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 7 January 2013. She has substantial
experience in finance and taxation areas in the PRC.

Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor degree in economics from the
Shandong Economic University (111 5 ASHEfz) in 1988. Ms.
Zhang is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC, Certified Tax
Advisor, Certified Assets Valuer and Senior Accountant.

Ms. Zhang is currently the chairman of Labour Union of Huaxia
Life Insurance Co., Limited (328 ARG BRAF).

Ms. Zhang is currently an independent director of Sinoer Men’s
Wear Co., Ltd. (7% BB A RRA T ) (002485.8Z) whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 18 January 2013. He has
more than 40 years of business experience in the international
hospitality industry, especially in the Greater China region.

Mr. Zimmermann is currently the president and CEO of AVA
Hospitality, a hotel management services company providing
specialized China-related hospitality management and
consultancy services and giving independent professional
advice on design brief on hotel component to hotel investors
and operators. Mr. Zimmermann now serves as the senior vice
president of Swiss-Belhotel International, an international
hotel management company offering unique fusion of Swiss
hospitality management in all aspects of the hotel, serviced
apartments and club. He is also an associate of Global Strategic
Associates, LLC, an independent, privately-owned international
advisory firm in New York, the United States of America.

Mr. Zimmermann started his hospitality career first in Stadl-
Paura, Austria in 1962 and accepted hospitality training in
Gmunden, Austria. Before relocating to Hong Kong as a
restaurant manager in Furama Hotel in 1974, he worked in a
number of food and beverage positions across various Western
Europe countries, including England, Switzerland, Italy, Bermuda
and so on. Mr. Zimmermann continued his hotel business in
a Holiday Inn Group (now known as InterContinental Hotels
Group) for subsequent years in senior managerial and executive
positions for the development of the hotel chain throughout the
Asia Pacific region, including, Hong Kong, Thailand and the PRC;
and later on, with extensive years of experience in the hospitality
field, Mr. Zimmermann established his own hotel management
business, namely, Zenith Hotels International Limited, providing
hotel management services and technical assistance to hotel
owners, developing more than 20 hotel properties throughout
the PRC and South-East Asia. More recently, Mr. Zimmermann
served as the vice president within the ACCOR Hotel Group
China to re-position new Sofitel Luxury Hotel in the PRC; and
being the senior vice president in the New World Hotels Group
to help promote its new hotel brand in the PRC. In previous
years, Mr. Zimmermann also held consultative positions in
certain companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tang Sze Lok

Mr. Tang Sze Lok, aged 43, is chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Hons.) in Accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist University. He is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong, Certified Tax Adviser and Senior International
Finance Manager. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants; and he is also a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the International Financial Management
Association, the Institute of Accountants Exchange, the
Information Systems Audit and Control Association and the Vice
President of the Accountancy Industry of the Young Professionals
Alliance. He had held senior management and financial
executive positions in various listed companies in Hong Kong.
He has more than 18 years of experience in auditing, taxation,
financial reporting, corporate finance and corporate governance
in respect of Sarbanes-Oxley Act 404 and internal control
compliance.

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, aged 42, He is the financial
controller of the Company and is responsible for financial
management of the Group’s electronic business. Mr. Kwok
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Kwok is also an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Kwok holds a Master of Professional Accounting
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master
of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open University of
Hong Kong and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Mr. Kwok is currently an independent non-executive director
of Siberian Mining Group Company Limited (Stock code: 1142)
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
8249) whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

$i‘$ﬂ¢$

The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an EGM of the
Company held on 25 February 2013, the name of the Company
was approved to be changed from“Kwang Sung Electronics H.K.
Co. Limited Jt 2 BT & #H R/ A" to “Forebase International
Holdings Limited H1 3B FEHE A BR A 7”7, With effect from 12
March 2013, the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong approved
the change of the Company name and issued the Certificate of
Change of Name.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. Following the completion
of the Distribution In Specie, the Group revisited its business
activities based on the degree of importance and extended its
principal activities to properties investment, i.e. the Group’s
investment properties portfolios in Hong Kong, Korea and the
PRC. In addition, upon the completion of the major acquisition
of relevant assets pertaining to the operation of a resort on
20 November 2013, the Group further extended its principal
activities to hotel operation.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements. An analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2013 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Sales

The largest customer 21.5%
Five largest customers combined 53.0%
Purchases

The largest supplier 12.8%
Five largest suppliers combined 27.9%
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None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which,
to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) has a beneficial interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 55 to 184 of
this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on pages 61
to 62 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to approximately HK$1,208,000 (2012:
HK$2,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year, no new ordinary share has been issued by the
Company. As at the date of 31 December 2013, the Company
maintained 323,896,933 issued ordinary shares.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive director

Mr.Yang Ho Sung (Chairman)*

Executive directors

Mr. ShenYong (Chairman)*

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Li Zhi

Mr. Xu Li Jian

Mr. Leung Kin Pang

Mr.Yang Jai Sung*

Mr. Lee Kyu Young*

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Independent non-executive directors

Mr.Yu Lei*

Dr. JiangYing”

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan"

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

*

resigned on 7 January 2013
appointed on 7 January 2013
appointed on 18 January 2013

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under
the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Sang Joon, Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas and
Mr. Shen Ke shall retire from the Board by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, the directors have entered into
either service contract or letters of appointment, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election of their directorship in the
Company as set in the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, no director of the Company, who
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders”approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
(the “Model Code”) (collectively “discloseable interests”) were as
follows:
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(1) Interests in Issued Shares of the Company
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

“z-=#4% 45 N

B A 0.1 # o2 ¥ 78 ik
Interest of Total
Beneficial controlled number of % of total
owner corporation shares held issued shares
P iz e #iTkK
Name of directors HEMA Haudf A Z HE 4 Jepriad  BEZASL
Mr. Shen Yong H B S 176,272,950 176,272,950 54.42%
(note)
(B aE)
Mr. Shen Ke A e 5,500,000 176,272,950 181,772,950 56.12%
(note)
(BF&E)
Note: These shares were held by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra BitE 0 3% % M 1% i Ultra Harest Limited ([ Ultra

Harvest”), of which Ultra Harvest was owned as to 60% by

Harvest|) 54 > 1fi Ultra Harvest i1 H 5§
SEEMEA 60% B AT SR A HEAT 40% o H T

Mr. Shen Yong and 40% by Mr. Shen Ke. Mr. Shen Yong is the
father of Mr. Shen Ke.

(2) Interests in Ordinary Shares of USD1.00 each in the
Issued Share Capital in Ultra Harvest, the Associated
Corporation of the Company

Nature of interest/

Capacity

Name of directors #HFEH RESRPEE B0y
Mr. Shen Yong F RSB Beneficial owner
Hala A

Mr. Shen Ke ] S Beneficial owner

i A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their

respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.
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2) A4 AL 6] Ultra Harvest & 3172

H B IR IETE 1.00 56 70 2 35 78 [ HE 22
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shares held of Ultra Harvest
{fi Ultra Harvest
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 16 June 2003 expired on 15 June 2013. The
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite, among other eligible
participants, employees of the Group (including directors of
any member of the Group), advisers and consultants, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The purpose
of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of
the Company. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending on 2 June 2023, after which no further
options can be granted.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme)
to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 30 May
2013, being the date of passing of the ordinary resolution for
adopting the New Share Option Scheme (the“General Mandate
Limit”).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no
outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme; nor were there any options granted, exercised,
cancelled or which lapsed under or in accordance with the Old
Scheme or the New Scheme during that period.

No share options had been granted to directors or employees for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than
the directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

AR 0.1 W o 2 53
No. of ordinary Nature of % of issued
shares held  interest/Capacity share capital
HAEZ WERS TR AN BAT
Substantial shareholders — FZRH HEB e Sy [ipid:a
Ultra Harvest (Note 1) Ultra Harvest (Bff5¥1) 176,272,950 (L) Beneficial owner 54.42%
Ha A A
Ms. Meng Qing (Note 2) EH L (HEE2) 176,272,950 (L) Interest of spouse 54.42%
e A 2 A 2
5,500,000 (L) Beneficial owner 1.70%
JLEE ZSUN
Ms. Peng Jingyi (Note 3) PG — 4t (MEE3) 181,772,950 (L)  Interest of spouse 56.12%
B {2 HE 4
(L) Long position L) T8
Notes: BtaE

(1) Ultra Harvest is owned as to 60% by Mr. Shen Yong and 40% by Mr.
Shen Ke. Pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, each of Mr. Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke is deemed to be
interested in all the ordinary shares in which Ultra Harvest is, or is
deemed to be, interested. Mr. Shen Yong is the father of Mr. Shen Ke,
both of whom are directors of Ultra Harvest.

(2)  Ms. Meng Qing is the spouse of Mr. Shen Yong. Pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed
to be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Yong is, or
is deemed to be, interested.

(3)  Ms. Peng Jingyi is the spouse of Mr. Shen Ke. Pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed
to be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Ke is, or
is deemed to be, interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other
interests required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO had been notified to the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
directors confirmed that save as disclosed or referred to in
the announcement of the Company dated 9 April 2013, the
Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” and note 45 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Yang Jai Sung,
a former director resigned on 7 January 2013, is also a director
of Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Kwang Sung Korea”).
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and his relatives hold approximately 79.5%
interest in share capital of Kwang Sung Korea whose business
whose businesses compete or are likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses. The principal businesses
of Kwang Sung Korea are as follows:

1.  Research, design and product development of electronic
components and related products and manufacturing
of electronic components for electronic appliances and
communication equipment through the factory operated
by Kwang Sung Korea (the “KSK Factory”) exclusively for
orders placed directly with Kwang Sung Korea and to be
sold in the Korean market but subject to the terms and
limited to the scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking
and the Research and Development Service Agreement.

2. Sales, marketing, purchasing and distribution of electronic
components for electronic appliances and communication
equipment, but subject to the terms and limited to the
scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking and the
Commission Agreement.
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In relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, each of Kwang Sung Korea, KS-
Tech Group Corporation, and Mr. Yang Jai Sung has entered into
the Deed of Undertaking in favour of the Group to the effect that
for so long as Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries,
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and/or the companies controlled by
Mr. Yang Jai Sung are beneficially interested, directly and
indirectly, whether individually or taken together, in 20% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company, Kwang Sung
Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will not, and Kwang Sung Korea
and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will procure that none of its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) and the companies controlled by him
(other than the Group), respectively, will engage or otherwise be
involved in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with any of the businesses carried out
by any member of the Group from time to time (the “Restricted
Business”) in any of the regions in which the Group is engaged
in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such regions include
Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).

Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to first refer all customers’ orders
of electronic components production received by Kwang Sung
Korea from its customers (subject to certain conditions) and
the results and/or products developed by the product design
and research and development centre of Kwang Sung Korea
and the KSK Factory and/or any intellectual property right in or
arising from such results and/or products to the Group on terms
in accordance with the Deed of Undertaking, the Commission
Agreement and the Research and Development Service
Agreement, respectively.

According to the supplementary Deed of Undertaking effective
20 September 2005, KS-Tech Group Corporation is no longer a
party to the Deed of Undertaking as it is no longer beneficially
owned by Kwang Sung Korea.

Pursuant to the supplementary deed inter alia, for so long
as Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries and Mr.
Yang Jai Sung and/or any of the companies controlled by
him are beneficially interested, directly or indirectly, whether
individually or taken together, in 10% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company, Kwang Sung Korea and Mr.
Yang Jai Sung will not, and Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang
Jai Sung will procure that none of its subsidiaries (other than
the Group) and the companies controlled by him (other than
the Group), respectively, will engage or otherwise be involved
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with any of the Restricted Business in any
of the regions in which the Group engages in and undertakes
the Restricted Business (such regions include Korea and the PRC
(including Hong Kong)).
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As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Shen Yong, the Chairman of the
Company, and Mr. Shen Ke, an executive Director, were also
directors and controlling shareholders, holding an aggregate
of approximately 100% equity interest of Chongqing Forebase
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd., which together with
its subsidiaries, are engaged in hotel real estate development
business in the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors and his/her respective associates had interests in the
businesses which competes or was likely to compete, whether
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Each of Mr.
Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke has undertaken to the Company
that for so long as he remains as a Director or a controlling
Shareholder, all enquiries and actual or potential business
opportunities received by him (and/or his associates) in relation
to hotel real estate business (the “Business Opportunities”) shall
be referred to the Company on a timely basis and the Business
Opportunities must be first offered or made available to the
Group.

The transactions with Kwang Sung Korea are set out in note
45(a) to the financial statements. There has been no material
change in directors’ interests in any competing business
subsequent to 31 December 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with Kwang Sung Holdings Co., Ltd. (“KSH”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively “KSH Group”), which constituted
continuing connected transactions (the “connected transactions”)
as defined in the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Supply Agreement entered into by
the Company and KSH Group, KSH Group purchased certain
electronics components from a subsidiary of the Company
for a fixed term of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2014. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
sales of electronic components to KSH Group amounted to
HK$12,749,000 (2012: HK$802,000).

RoE - ARE TR
55 Se 4 B AT B o R A S AR I A B R
(£ ARA R Z#HF RPERR > 3854
#1100% FBCHE - 5% 2% w2 R LR 2 w1 rP e
I i ) % S

R ESCHkER &SN RF = =t
H o> BEHEEE o5 45 A I 58N % Bl sl ] i B A
EHEH BT (i EAR S M%) M3 h oA
HESE o F 55 ST S B S A 8 T AR FR G
P AN 45 408 A e BB RT3 (%K
U N ) DRI G 4t 2 265 1 2] 14 BT A £ f
LB MR rT RE R ([P b)) ZE R IRP i Ay A Y
Al > AR B B S AR AR AR o

S B e B 2 58 G W R O B R 3R B R
45@@) c R _F—=F A=+ —HEZ  #EF
ISTRIE S P Eoh|EIIERUIEPN -

HFHGEH

A TR 7 46 RT S B AR B A ] A R AT AT
BRI WS 2 PR RATHG ) o

I3 7852 5

N AR ELDE B R BA BR A R (T 2 4%
Je)) B ELRA a8 2 /) (iR [OE 2 s M ) i
FTRBIEE 5y > %5 58 5 W L iy LRI T 2 7 2
R 5 ([BEZE S )

R A 5w Bl B 48 G 4 13 35T 57 HE 28 41 RE g
o N B B AR I 1) AR 7 — M E
NEBEETETEN A _F—_F—H—
HEE —F—JFEF+_A=+—HILAH=
Fo MBE_ET—=F+"H=1+—HILF
B ot R M B T on 2 SRS
12,749,000 #5 70 (—Z&F—4F : 802,000 #57T) °



At the extraordinary general meeting of 5 December 2012,
the Company has sought approval from the independent
shareholders of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions up to the limit specified in the annual cap amount
for each of the financial years ended/ending 31 December
2012, 2013 and 2014 are HK$43,400,000, HK$46,500,000, and
HK$49,900,000 respectively.

These transactions were entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the respective companies after due negotiations
on an arm’s length basis with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.

Announcements were published regarding the transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that
it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are
applicable.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000“Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the above
continuing connected transactions. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

All Independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed these transactions and the auditor’s letter and
confirmed that the respective contracts and terms of these
transactions are:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

2. on normal commercial terms; and
3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
commercial interests of the Group as a whole.
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Saved as disclosed above, the related party transactions set out
in note 45 to the financial statements constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
after the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange. Such
continuing connected transactions were exempt continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing
Rules and are exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 185 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F.,The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS KWANG SUNG ELECTRONICS
H.K. CO. LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Forebase
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 55 to 184, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
21 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o B A b A ik i R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 Tt THETC
Continuing operations AR EEY
Revenue g 7 298,722 363,553
Cost of sales S8 AR (292,923) (339,539)
Gross profit EEvill 5,799 24,014
Other income and gains A A R i 2 9 4,643 8,649
Selling and distribution expenses S S a3 B B S (7,899) (9,345)
Administrative expenses TEBE X (25,622) (12,373)
Research and development expenses WTEE B % (11,057) (14,593)
Other operating expenses HoAh A8 75 BH 5 (14,019) (20,396)
Change in fair value of BEW 2 A R
investment properties 19 (5,157) 4,292
Finance costs R A 10 (2,441) (44)
Loss before tax BRI 1R (55,753) (19,796)
Income tax expense TS BB 2 11 4,097 (3,848)
Loss for the year from continuing RS ¥ NEREF E =
operations pd 2= (51,656) (23,644)
Discontinued operations O IR S
Loss for the year from discontinued ARAEEAR H O RS R
operations pd T 12 = (30,461)
Loss for the year AR EE 13 (51,656) (54,105)
Other comprehensive income At 2 DL i
Items that will not be reclassified to AIRE A E w9 HE -
profit or loss:
Actuarial gains on long service RIS B RIS 2 R H ki
payment obligations 548 -
Release of deferred tax upon B BCE Y MR
disposal of investment properties ZARSERLIE 2,211 -
2,759 -
Items that may be reclassified HE T ER A
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising PRI 50 170 /2 A 2 B 50,72 %
on translation 2,194 9,123
Other comprehensive income AR JE HC A 4 T A 4
for the year 4,953 9,123
Total comprehensive expense AR JBE A T BH SRR

for the year (46,703) (44,982)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o R A A kR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
W& E Tt TH#TT

Loss for the year attributable AN AR NEAL AR 4 s 48

to owners of the Company

— from continuing operations y QEERT - E VS (51,656) (23,644)

— from discontinued operations R Sl v - (28,695)
Loss for the year attributable AN FEA N A A JE s 4E

to owners of the Company (51,656) (52,339)
Loss for the year attributable T 12 JROHE 4 B A AR 41 e 1

to non-controlling interests

— from continuing operations — 2 B R SR - -

— from discontinued operations — R H BRI B S - (1,766)
Loss for the year attributable P2 JROAE 4 B AN A 4 e 18

to non-controlling interests - (1,766)

(51,656) (54,105)

Total comprehensive expense JRE A A 4 2 4 T BH S AR -

for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company N/NCIE ZEDN (46,703) (43,216)
Non-controlling interests EEEdiig e - (1,766)

(46,703) (44,982)

Loss per share R 17 HK cents HK cents
From continuing and PIEEES  PAab I IR EE- ¢ 37

discontinued operations
Basic and diluted A T 4 (15.95) (16.16)
From continuing operations 2 A 5 A A R
Basic and diluted FEA T v (15.95) (7.30)
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2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Rt 5 T T
Non-current assets FE B
Property, plant and equipment Y2 ~ WEAS LA 18 136,259 23,112
Investment properties EVS<L7/ES 19 29,823 56,292
Goodwill RS 21 = -
Club memberships B 22 600 600
Intangible asset Ei5IA v 23 = -
Available-for-sale investments ik E R 24 - -
Deposits for purchase of property, WS B2 - Weas Ikl 2 3k
plant and equipment - 106
166,682 80,110
Current assets B A
Inventories ey 25 26,385 26,384
Trade and other receivables TEE 5 K HoAh AR 3k 26 77,437 65,478
Restricted bank deposits 7 PR ERA TR 27 10,007 11,009
Bank balances and cash SRATE R M B 4 27 67,859 99,241
181,688 202,112
Current liabilities i B £ 0
Trade and other payables TEATHE 5 K HoAh BE ik 28 65,481 74,513
Tax payables JREASH R T 5,239 10,757
Bank borrowing — due within one year — $R17{5 8 — —4F A F| 29 = 19,548
Obligations under finance lease B AR AT 30 133 -
70,853 104,818
Net current assets B E A FA 110,835 97,294
Total assets less current liabilities R IR A A 277,517 177,404
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GAMBRAR

As at 31 December 2013 A —-F— =4+ _H =+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt T#n THIT
Capital and reserves B A I fiti A
Share capital A 31 32,390 32,390
Reserves A 87,677 134,380
Equity attributable to owners of E/NEIE SN T B
the Company and total equity Yi&iEa 120,067 166,770
Non-current liabilities FE By £ A
Financial liabilities at fair value A B R A&
through profit or loss ZaEmAs 33 - -
Deferred tax liabilities HESERIH B 15 34 7,647 10,183
Obligations under finance lease BER & EAT 30 444 -
Amount due to ultimate holding JREAT i 42 2 ) 3T
company 35 16,565 -
Amount due to a director JREAS — 4% ¥ FH A 35 16,478 -
Secured note ML 36 116,316 -
Long service payment obligations RIS & B 37 - 451
157,450 10,634
277,517 177,404

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 184 were 55 B IBAH Z ARG MBS IR C R —F— N
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on F=A T B S AT > I

21 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: MR AUR R
Shen Yong H 5
Director wH
Li Zhi =8

Director 2
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2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
iES T# T T
Non-current assets JE B

Property, plant and equipment L/ E T RN 18 580 ~
Investments in subsidiaries B A ) 2 R A 20 186,949 193,344
Club memberships & T 22 - -
Available-for-sale investments it R E 24 - -
187,529 193,344

Current assets W& E
Other receivables HAME AR 26 10,639 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE VAT I Jo85 2 ]k JE 20 118,243 -
Bank balances and cash SRATES B M Bl 4 27 3,750 -
132,632 -

Current liabilities B A
Other payables A E AR 3K 28 1,805 225
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST R 2N &) K TE 20 11,053 17,387
Tax payables JEA BT 3,084 8,962
15,942 26,574
Net current assets (liabilities) MHEEFE (A) 116,690 (26,574)
Total assets less current liabilities G R A DR R B B R 304,219 166,770
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Statement of Financial Position
0tk T %

As at 31 December 2013 A —-F— =4+ _H =+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
R 5E T T
Capital and reserves B AR KAk
Share capital % 31 32,390 32,390
Reserves At 32 122,560 134,380
Total equity AR £ 154,950 166,770
Non-current liabilities FEUR Bh £
Amount due to ultimate holding JREAS) o 4 428 IBL 2 B
company 35 16,565 -
Amount due to a director JREASH— 4% &6 F i IE 35 16,388 -
Secured note EfiREGi=Ei 36 116,316 -
149,269 -
304,219 166,770

The financial statements on pages 55 to 184 were approved and 55 B 184 HZ MBI R C R —F —U4F =
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2014 HZ+— HEEE g St W h

and are signed on its behalf by: G FAREE
Shen Yong H
Director HFH
Li Zhi =8

Director HH
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Attributable to owners of the Company

Annual Report 2013
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FRATHEH AEL
Retained
Properties profits
revaluation (accumulated Non-
Share Share Other Contribution  reserve  Statutory  Exchange losses) controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve WE oreseve  reserve  RitER Total  interests Total
Bk RORE  RRRG SERE O ENEE kBB WERBE  RERN At BRI ot
HK§000  HKBO0O0  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tt TET  TEx T T T T T TExX TEr T
(Notea) ~ (Noteb) ~ (Notec) ~ (Noted)  (Notee)
(Wta) (D (B (D) (e
At1January 2012 RoF-ZE-f-A 3,39 58,566 301 8478 B4 10215 73 1% 279 258 3007
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - - (52339 (2339 (1766)  (4,105)
Other comprehensive expense forthe year AP A2 £
- Bxchange differences arising -BHREmEEELER
on tranlation - - - - - - 9,123 - 9123 - 9123
Totel comprehensive income (expense) RERATE (F) A%

for the year - - - - - - 918 (52339 (#3210) (L766) (4498
Released upon the Distrbution REYRIEAAR RS

In Specie of shares in a subsidiary ' _ - - (301) - - - (8488) 8789 - (49 (49
Special dividend by way of Distrbution DI RREA ARG R

In Specie ofshares in a subsidiary RERARE (i)

(Note 40 : . . . . . oo o)
At31 December 2012 REF-ZHEFAZ-0 32,39 58,560 - 8478 8142 10215 (6,686) 40,005 166,770 - 166770
Loss for the year RERER - - - - - - - GleH Bl - Bl
Other comprehensive expense forthe year A MAER L

- Actuaril gains on long senvice payment - RERHF S RIEZ KR

obligations (Note 37) (W3E37) - - - - - - - 548 548 - 548

- Release of defered texupon disposalof - il R A E L

investment properties (Note 34) ZABTERA (Wit 34) - - - - 21 - - - 21 - 21

- Bxchange differences arising - E R B A
on translation - - - - - - 2,194 - 219 - 2194
- - - - 211 - 219 48 493 - 4953

Total comprehensive income (expense) AEERERE (R 85

fortheyear B . - - S G ) - W)
Disposal of nvestment properties e - - - - (14%0) - - % - - -
At31 December 2013 REB-ZEF =40 32,39 38,566 - 8478 10397 10215 (4490) 4513 120,067 - 10067

Notes: BFEE -

(a)  Share premium (@) IefriERfd
The application of the share premium is governed by section 48B of e i A 2 AR 52 7 s 2 W 911465 48B R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b)  Other reserve (b)  HAUREE

Other reserve represents the acquisition/disposal of partial equity
interests of subsidiaries with non-controlling interest without changes

in control. Details of the accounting policy are set out in note 3.

BRI R B RE S ©

S A5 -4 1) 2 SEOHEE £ PSRN o 5 e 2 )
Z BT IBEAS A i 10 S 06 2 REAS AR BB ) o @Rt
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAHREN&

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

(c) Contribution reserve (o)

Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003.

(d) Properties revaluation reserve (d)

The properties revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in note 3. The reserve was arising from land
and buildings under revaluation model adopted in prior years. The
land and buildings were transferred to investment properties during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the properties revaluation
reserve will be released upon the disposal of the respective properties.

(e) Statutory reserve (e)

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
laws applicable to wholly-foreign owned investment enterprises,
subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are required to set
up a general reserve fund and appropriate at least 10% of respective
company’s annual profit after tax, as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
balance of the reserve equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses and to convert into paid-up capital.

H 2

H R f A T Rt — A AR = F T R
ZHER AR -

o WA i

Wy AN G5 1 BT 3 BT A B B ) ot
M 2 E Rt BOR R L SR o BE AR R T AR
JIE 3] o T A PR AN A R T AR R
F—THET A= HIREE s b R
i EEv -/ E L E SR EL YN RCEEN E/ES
5 BRI

e Al

AR50 T S 7 8 A 2 2 N RSE AR ([
B 1) ko AR EA B A 2 B 4 ] R
SE— AR A IR A Rl 10% Z AR BERL
PR (48 B kA R BBl 55) 488 A\ —Fiefi
M4 H R GRS ERE B G AS50% 2 1k
— A it 4 5 < T A SR A e 4L D G 5 AR AS
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Cpnsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SAlleHER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt THETC
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B
Loss before tax i HiT e 12
— from continuing operations — B8 R A AR 2 (55,753) (19,796)
— from discontinued operations -2 5 C A I KRB ERS
(Note 12) (F5E12) . (31,391)
(55,753) (51,187)
Adjustments for: AR BT R
Interest income FLE A (636) 171)
Finance costs Rl A 2,441 44
Depreciation PreE 9,321 13,639
Amortisation of intangible asset EiSIA Y = 1,095
Impairment loss recognised Yo - AR R RR
on property, plant and equipment ZE R E 873 2,178
Impairment loss recognised JRENSC . 5y B HAB R e R
on trade and other receivables Z WA k18 71 1,365

TR 5 B H ARk
TR 2 U (L 4 [l 43¢ (317) (142)
e e fElERE AR 4

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
on trade and other receivables
Decrease in fair value of financial

liabilities at fair value through

ZeMEHZ A EE

profit or loss o . (5,908)
Decrease (increase) in fair value of WY EZ A AREE

investment properties W () 5,157 (4,292)
Allowance for inventories 17 B = 5455
Reversal of allowance for inventories A7 B33 MG 2 043 (2,134 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE - B Sty

plant and equipment Z Wi (50) (166)
Loss on disposal of investment HE R E Y22 1R

properties 2,956 -
Impairment loss recognised ALY TR

on intangible asset Z W (E R B 5,929
Decrease in long service payment RIS B et Z D

obligations 97 (239)
Gain arising from initial recognition of %/ RAE(AFFAH

amount due to ultimate holding Z A I K B s v

company at fair value FIEZ S e AE (IS (1,287) -
Gain arising from initial recognition of %/ RAE(EFF AR

amount due to a director at fair value A — 45 HHOA

ZA B D (1,281) -
Net foreign exchange loss FE e e 5, 1 2,086 2,344
Operating cash flows before BB B
movements in working capital KB GE (38,456) (30,056)
Decrease in inventories e 2,106 2,573
(Increase) decrease in JRES ' 5 Fe Ho A ek
trade and other receivables (H8hm) s (4,429) 11,750
(Decrease) increase in JREAS B 5 I Ho A HR K
trade and other payables () tEhm (16,110) 5,453
Cash used in operations BT T 2 Bl (56,889) (10,280)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund FHB A BURB — 149
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid e A B A S T 1 B (1,746) (4,068)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REBIGEEMHZHE&FH

ACTIVITIES (58,635) (14,199)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt THETC
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEG B

Proceeds on disposal of investment Y ST REA

properties 18,751 -
Decrease (increase) in restricted Z Rl $RAT 473K

bank deposits B () 1,002 (10,537)
Interest received CCFLE 636 171
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYE - AR

plant and equipment Ko %A P A I 50 166
Purchases of property, R - 3R K

plant and equipment (7,274) (38,292)
Increase in deposits for purchase of WS B - HRT B

property, plant and equipment Z ¥y - (2,441)

Repayment from shareholders J SR R OH = 62,056
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BRI B P13 2 BB 8

ACTIVITIES 13,165 11,123
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R Y

Advance from ultimate holding T B A FE K

company 17,852 -
Advance from a director — A E K 17,759 -
Repayment of obligation BRI ST B R

under finance lease (125) -

Interest paid B FILE (2,441) (2,953)

Repayment of bank borrowing TERSRATIE 3K (19,548) -

Net cash outflow on Distribution E W53 IR M 2w A

In Specie of shares in a subsidiary PR 2 B A T
(Note 40) (BftEE 40) — (7,731)

New bank loans raised R TS & - 5,026
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BB S ()

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZHEFH 13,497 (5,658)
NET DECREASE IN CASH B& KBl &5 EY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z WL FHE (31,973) (8,734)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #R—H—HzZH%

AT 1 JANUARY BBl &% 99,241 109,710
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 32 % 8 3% 591 (1,735)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS j#*+—_H=+—H

AT 31 DECEMBER, represented ZBERBEEHY

by bank balances and cash Ti4RER1T 4 6% 67,859 99,241
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

GENERAL

Forebase International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section to the annual report.

On 27 September 2012, Mr. Yang Jai Sung (“Mr. Yang”), a
then executive director and Kwang Sung Electronics Co.
Ltd. (“Kwang Sung Korea”) (as vendors) and Ultra Harvest
Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, entered into
an agreement (the “Share Sale Agreement”) (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated
16 October 2012) relating to the sale of an aggregate of
174,082,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 in the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Shares”) to Ultra
Harvest, at a price of HK$0.9263 per Share. As conditions
precedent to completion of the Share Sale Agreement,
the Company was required, among other things, to carry
out a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”),
to effect a distribution in specie of shares in Jay Star
Holdings Limited, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Jay Star” or the “Privateco”) (the “Distribution
In Specie”). The transactions contemplated under the
Share Sale Agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 5 December 2012. Upon satisfaction of
other conditions, completion of the Share Sale Agreement
took place on 11 December 2012.

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company,
among other things, reorganised its subsidiaries into two
subgroups, the “Remaining Group” and the “Privateco
Group”.

The Remaining Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of electronic components to
worldwide customers (except for those in the Republic of
Korea (“Korea”) and Japan) (the “Retained Businesses”).
The Privateco Group is engaged in all businesses of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, other than the
Retained Businesses (the “Distributed Businesses”).

— B B

P S M A R ) — A 5 9 3
RS2 ATRRA A - OB I 5 5
AR ) (TS ) b - A il 2 3
RS0 S R A A
VORI g o

AN s S| I e o i = IR 1 K
wRHPAE RS (954 ]) ket
EETAMRAR ([FEHDEE]) ([FH ) 5
Ultra Harvest Limited ([ Ultra Harvest | » i
)T i LR S s S 2 B BRA R #TAL
W (&) (BEHWME —F— 4
+H TN H R R E BT &) o N
L B A 7% 4 % 0.9263 #5 G [7] Ultra Harvest
8 A 45 174,082,000 A2 7] £ 8847 A
WA B THIE 0.10 5 e 2 E A e ([ ) -
VE 5 58 B0 B e 9 Se e i > AT
ZH (s BT EEEH (TEEE
M) > VB IRAS 2 A E R 2 A G K
/5 ] Jay Star Holdings Limited ([ Jay Star |
B TRAARNTH ) Z By (TEWHRIR]) - &
B EE NG _FE—_F+_Hh
H 847 2 R B K o 7R w08 5T
L HE o A B H AR AR > B R R
R —THEF A+ HEM .

WRIFEMEA - AN R CLAPaEE) AHH
J& AL TR T M ] & [FANAFSE
V| T A1 o £

BN EMEERELSERES (REFEX
R (8 ]) K HAKS) %5k K
Bt (TREEE D) - AL AL E
TR oy A S B S 4R 1 T AL A BR AR B 265
ZHNIIT AT S ([REIRSEFS D) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 &k W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

GENERAL (Continued)

Upon completion of the Share Sale Agreement, Ultra
Harvest became the controlling shareholder of the
Company, holding 174,082,000 Shares, which represented
approximately 53.75% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The Privateco Group having 323,896,932 Privateco shares
was distributed as a special dividend to the shareholders
of the Company on 11 December 2012, whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company
on 10 December 2012 (the “Record Date Shareholders”),
details of the Distribution In Specie are set out in note
40. As a result of the Group Reorganisation, the Retained
Businesses were classified as continuing operations while
the Distributed Businesses, being disposed of, were
classified as discontinued operations, details of which are
set out in note 12.

On 14 December 2012, Haitong International Securities
Company Limited (“Haitong International Securities”) on
behalf of Ultra Harvest made an unconditional mandatory
cash offer to acquire all the issued shares in the Company
other than those shares already owned or agreed to be
acquired by Ultra Harvest and parties acting in concert
with any of it at a price of HK$0.9263 per Share (the “Listco
Offer”).

The Listco Offer was closed on 4 January 2013 with valid
acceptances in respect of a total of 69,519,950 Shares,
representing 21.46% of the total issued share capital
of the Company. Upon completion of the Listco Offer,
Ultra Harvest was interested in 243,601,950 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 75.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 February 2013,
the name of the Company was changed from “Kwang
Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited Yt REE T HFHBH R
/T to “Forebase International Holdings Limited H1%&
B s A PR F]7 . With effect from 12 March 2013,
the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong approved the
change of the Company’s name and issued the Certificate
of Change of Name. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 February 2013 and 13 March
2013.

—HRE B (4

TN 58 5 AR 19 i#% 4% 0 Ultra Harvest i £ 45
IS AIVE R - A 174,082,000 B4
TR E BT IAK) 53.75% ©

‘HIIHH

LN FIAE T 2 O 381719 323,896,932 ik
NS TR —F——F+_H+—H
PLRF A e S B 0 IR T AR
HJrEl@ﬁlJZKQﬁ?H&%%ﬂﬁzzk/Ailﬂiﬁ
([Fe8k BB D) > B/ IR E 0 5 7
BFF5E 40 o M EI A E N > R
BB 5 FRAE A S T S 1 A8 TR
EH B B DS EY . FEFE
A REE12 -

RoE T HTUH > v
FAH R A ([ B PR ) A3 Ultra
Harvest i 48~ ®l & F B 8T M (R E
% Ultra Harvest & H—8i78) A L O ¥R
o [ 2 WA 2 By ) i 2 A A i ) 1 B
S AR > WO AE S 25 1 0.9263 H5 T
([ B mli ek

Fﬁ“ﬂﬁzﬂ%L K E—=F—HMH
Bk > A 3031 69,519,950 B &y 2 5L
Pl > AN A E B TR S0 BH 21.46% ©
BT A A B R 5T K 1R 0 Ultra
Harvest #E A 4 28 w] 243,601,950 B Bk 1 2
MRS > AEARA R B T ARSEEE 75.21% °

CERCZEZATTRRE  RAAFEBOR
A K 2 A A R R R A 2 D
# i [Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co.
Limited 6 2 & T & A R ) 1A
[ Forebase International Holdings Limited
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GENERAL (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. Following the
completion of the Distribution In Specie on 11 December
2012, the Group revisited its businesses activities based
on the degree of importance and extended its principal
activities to properties investment, i.e. the Group’s
investment properties portfolios in Hong Kong, the
Korea and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). In
addition, upon the completion of the major acquisition of
relevant assets pertaining to the operation of a resort on 20
November 2013, the Group further extended its principal
activities to hotel operation.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Ultra
Harvest is the ultimate holding company of the Company
and Mr. Shen Yong, the Chairman of the Company, is the
ultimate controlling party of the Company.

In prior years, the directors of the Company regarded
Korean Won (“KRW”) as the functional currency of the
Company. Upon the disposal of major operations in Korea,
whose functional currency is KRW, in December 2012,
the directors of the Company considered that the primary
economic environment has been substantially changed.
Since then, the directors of the Company determined the
change of functional currency of the Company from KRW
to Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) starting from 1 January 2013.

The functional currencies for certain subsidiaries are
Renminbi (“RMB”), Canadian dollar (“CAD”) and KRW.
For the purposes of presenting the financial statements,
the Group adopted HKS$ as its presentation currency as its
shares are listed in Hong Kong.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKEFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKERS 10
HKERS 11
HKERS 12
HKEFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC)* - Interpretation
(“Int”) 20

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

* HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; and

b)  recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. As the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements or any master netting agreements in place,
the application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures or amounts reported in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS
11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the
Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKEFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and c) has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for
an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included
in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over
an investee.

As a result of the initial application of HKFRS 10, the
directors of the Company made an assessment whether the
Group has control over its investees at the date of initial
application and concluded that the application of HKFRS
10 does not result in any change in control conclusions.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKEFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKEFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS
13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKERS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group
has not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13
for the 2012 comparative period. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in
2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 19
Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time.

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The
amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when
they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’
permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19 and
accelerate the recognition of past service costs. All actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset
or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit
or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected
return on plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS
19 are replaced with a ‘net interest” amount under HKAS
19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-
time application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The
application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in prior years. In
addition, HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces certain
changes in the presentation of the defined benefit cost
including more extensive disclosures, which are set out in
note 37.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKEFRS 14
Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle®

Financial Instruments

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts’

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKEFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures’

Investment Entities'

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions”

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Levies'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014, with earlier application permitted.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, except as disclosed below. Early
application is permitted.

Available for application — the mandatory effective
date will be determined when the outstanding phases
of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition” and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is
a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in
fair value (other than measurement period adjustments)
should be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments
to HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRG] R BASRT s I s Ul

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including
a description of the operating segments aggregated
and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments”assets to the entity’s assets
should only be provided if the segment assets are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRG] R BASRT s I s Ul

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as
related party transactions the amounts incurred for the
service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not
required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard
does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all
types of joint arrangement in the financial statements of
the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKERS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKERS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKEFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKERS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKEFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

J commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRG] R BASRT s I s Ul

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

e measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
investment entities amendments will have any effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Company
is not an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered, or to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service using
the projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions
that are dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity is required to attribute them to the employees’
periods of service.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 19 may not
have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements as all actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income
according to the Group’s accounting policy. However, a
detailed review is yet to be completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off’and‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible asset
with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there
has been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any
change to the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in
the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 39 will have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject
to novation.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The Interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives
rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment
of the levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation
provides guidance on how different levy arrangements
should be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that
neither economic compulsion nor the going concern basis
of financial statements preparation implies that an entity
has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered
by operating in a future period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 will have no effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group
does not have any levy arrangements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income
and expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Distribution In Specie

Where the Company distributed non-cash assets to its
equity holders and the aforesaid non-cash assets would
be ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
before and after the distribution, the dividend declared is
measured as the carrying amounts of such non-cash assets,
which are measured at historical cost and in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in this note.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGU (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to
which goodwill had been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amounts, being their fair values at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation:

° freehold land and buildings; and

o land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease and
the building is not clearly held under an operating
lease.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revaluated asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on revaluated buildings is recognised in profit
or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.

Depreciation on revaluated land and buildings and other
items of property, plant and equipment is provided to
write off the revaluated amount and cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives respectively and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

3.

FERETEBOR ()

Yok ~ WER Bkl (4h)

AT IR R AR AR o HAR
B B L THAC E A ) SE R > AW S E A
it A DR B 2 B A A 2 B o 48 2 R B Uik
A -

A AR T DL At 3~ R S
i B U RH 4R 3 85 LU 25 B8 T A R B
B (B4R #1955 2 TELI W] 0 ) 47 03 L B AR
oI E ) 3E ~ MR MR R 2 E A
BUOEA o RS IR > At w] {4 1 4F
W~ R ERAR (S I 8501 T AmAT o DMER
filist SR B B 2 AL o

AE 3 TR ELRE LA 7 K 1 P 0T 2
WIS ~ BRSO AE T €
L FEE 791 © A 63 2 ) 2
(W VR VAT 75) MR S o
AT AL Z (A - (£ TR E
52 L FL AT (8 PR BI4) B0 -
R N 3 A FLd s R
I %% A 4 P S 3 7 2 3
M -

AR5 AR B 3 A Y T e B B A
(7] F) 2 T L TR AT P AR S A R A
SR > k51 A £ 2L b 52 A 2 ) AL
WA PTG A - IR A
SR I AF W & P I B R RIS -



Annual Report 2013 % — = £ 89 N

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any impairment
loss between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.
Any appreciation of the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated

in the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position at cost less impairment losses.

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below). Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.

TR (8)

LA

LA e R e 4 0 2 P R 4 B B
{EEETE JRERE A FI B AR BLR UM

n\\

@

(ii)

¥ &
181 JI Wi iy & ST

Al P WS B 22 W] PR AR A PR 2 ST
L PRAS AT Ar] 22 5 L 2 S (s
HIIMR (N 3IA BA L & M
& E W EE R &R B - AR
o I AF ) 2 ST S i ) 4% A
FE ZAGEE AT AR DL B SRGE TR o A
w0 B B A T A R R A
gt > TATAN A st 8 2 R B T
FLHEF i o

TR EH 1 OF i & S TE

ST OE P 2 TR L P
Wi B A2 A B A 2 BRAE W2 iR
(B A) -

I T RRAR > ELiE m] AR 2 4
TE S T4 AR AR B R A
{ERTEIER -

(iii) P HEBIETE B

HETV G T TR AR A M7 4 46 975 0 2
RO fERE o BUH feRR AT G i
A2 s MEiR (LD B S 20A
A B EWR T 2 8RR T
W O R R AU (A 1R 25 P ERR o



Annual Report 2013 % — = £ 91 N

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHBUR ()
(Continued)
Inventories Feyty

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into available-for-sale (“AFS”)
investments and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets are fair value through profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are measured at cost less identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s and the Company’s rights
to receive the dividends is established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment loss (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

®  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s and the Company’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discontinued at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and amounts due
from subsidiaries, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable or an
amount due from a subsidiary are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL")

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL") (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e  itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities and is included in the other gains and losses line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to subsidiaries, bank borrowing,
obligations under finance lease, amount due to ultimate
holding company, amount due to a director and secured
note are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Long service payment obligations

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payment to its employees on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefits that the
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.

The obligations are calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to its present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributed to contributions made by the
Group. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued
over the period of employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit plans. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in full
in the year in which they occur in other comprehensive
income.

The obligations recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents actual deficit or surplus in
the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to
the plan.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns, discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passes, at
which all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii) Service income from hotel operation

Service income from hotel operation is recognised
when services are rendered.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are
directly attributable to research and development activities
or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s and the
Company’s research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are generally
not met until late in the development stage of the project
when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC and Korean local government defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the PRC and Korea and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group or the Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligations.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group and the Company assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group and the Company,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group and the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy
in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company review the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group and the Company estimate the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy
in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from“loss before tax”as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s and the
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group and the Company is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group and the Company expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (under
the heading of exchange reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

When there is a change in an entity’s functional currency,
the entity shall apply the translation procedures applicable
to the new functional currency prospectively from the date
of the change.

The functional currency of an entity reflects the underlying
transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to
the entity. Accordingly, once the functional currency is
determined, it can be changed only if there is a change to
those underlying transactions, events and conditions.

The entity translates all items into the new functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of the change.
The resulting translated amounts for non-monetary items
are treated as their historical cost. Exchange differences
arising from the translation of a foreign operation
previously recognised in exchange reserve would continue
to be held in exchange reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax asset arising from investment properties that
are measured using fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of the investment properties
located in the PRC and Korea. On the other hand, the
Group does not recognise any deferred tax on changes in
fair value of the investment properties located in Hong
Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of the investment properties in Hong Kong.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group and the Company review the carrying
amounts of the assets at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cash flow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value-in-use or fair value less costs of disposal
and provide for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts or fair value
assessments would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group’s and the Company’s
net asset value. At 31 December 2013, the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment of the Group is
approximately HK$136,259,000 (2012: HK$23,112,000), net
of impairment loss of approximately HK$873,000 (2012:
nil). At 31 December 2013, the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment of the Company is HK$580,000 (2012:
nil).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. An
increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the profit in the year and in future years. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables
and other receivables of the Group were approximately
HK$51,372,000 and HK$26,065,000 (2012: HK$55,285,000
and HK$10,193,000) respectively. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables and other
receivables of the Company were approximately nil and
HK$10,639,000 (2012: nil and nil) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of intangible asset

Determining whether intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value-in-use of the intangible asset.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group and the
Company to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the patents and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
impairment loss of approximately HK$5,929,000 (2013: nil)
has been recognised in discontinued operations. As at 31
December 2013 and 2012, the carrying values of intangible
asset of the Group and the Company were nil upon
the disposal on the Distribution In Specie of shares in a
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Allowance for inventories

The Group perform regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
expected future consumption and management judgement.
Based on this review, write down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement, the
Company evaluates, amongst other factors, the duration
and extent and the means by which the amount will be
recovered. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and past experience in sales of similar products.
It could change significantly as a result of changes. Due
to changes in technology and market conditions, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
inventories of the Group is approximately HK$26,385,000
(2012: HK$26,384,000), net of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$22,550,000 (2012: HK$37,652,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group and the Company
carefully evaluate tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Details of taxation
are set out in note 11.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for unutilised
tax losses and deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Details of deferred
tax are set out in note 34.

Estimate of fair value of land and buildings held
for own use at revaluation model and investment
properties

As described in notes 18 and 19, the Group’s land and
buildings held for own use at revaluation model and
investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period on an open market value basis by an
independent professional valuer using property valuation
techniques. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying value of land and buildings
held for own use at revaluation model and investment
properties of the Group are approximately nil (2012: nil)
and HK$29,823,000 (2012: HK$56,292,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries
and amounts due from subsidiaries are impaired requires
an estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise
from the subsidiaries in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2012. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries of
the Company is approximately HK$186,949,000 (2012:
HK$193,344,000), net of provision for impairment loss of
approximately HK$66,906,000 (2012: HK$66,906,000). As
at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of amounts
due from subsidiaries of the Company are approximately
HK$118,243,000 (2012: nil).

Long service payment obligations

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. A obligation is
recognised in respect of the probable future long service
payments expected to be made. The Group’s long service
payment obligations is determined with reference to
statutory requirements, the employees’ remuneration,
their years of service and age profile, and demographic
assumptions. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an on-
going basis and revised where appropriate. Any changes
to these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of long service payment obligations and the results and
financial position of the Group. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of long service payment obligations of
the Group is nil (2012: HK$451,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Amortised cost of amount due to ultimate holding
company and amount due to a director

The directors of the Company use their best estimation
to determine the effective interest rate in calculating the
amortised cost of amount due to ultimate holding company
and amount due to a director, with reference to the market
rates. Should the estimates applied are different, the
carrying value of these amounts will be changed. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amounts of amount due to
ultimate holding company and amount due to a director
are approximately HK$16,565,000 and HK$16,478,000
(2012: nil and nil) respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Company manage its capital to ensure
that entities in the Group and the Company will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s and the Company’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowing, obligations under finance
lease, amount due to ultimate holding company, amount
due to a director and secured note, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

EONCHP WY HEES
ZEERI ()

et Ao E &R 2 EARIR (44)

12 4 21 ) AR it 26 & ME A A A% I 43 vl kT
BN — 4 # F5H

AN A O R LR > 2T
& HE S BT SR 2R o R B ARAS R I AT
KA B T AR IE S A — 2 S KT o i
PR AEFEANTE > %8 S8 3K T8 AR (B 6
e N F =T A =1+—H &
AT i 4 P/ ) T T B A — 44 5 B I
Z R (B4 B 4 16,565,000 # 6 (—F—
4 M) K #916,478,000 88 T ( % —
A ) o

A Jal B A B

AIE ) AN R B A - AR A SR
B B AN R 2 B R RS R AR A o [l Wy
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. “RETH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) <@ THpH
The Group The Company
AR Y. N/
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—TUE —E2—= —E TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tt T T 0
Financial assets SRE B
Available-for-sale A R E
investments - - - -
Loans and receivables Bk KRB B R
(including cash (AR
and cash equivalents) (R &% ED) 144,081 174,485 121,993 -
144,081 174,485 121,993 -
Financial liabilities il £ 1
Amortised cost YA B A
ZEE 213,936 92,160 162,127 17,612

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowing,
obligations under finance lease, amount due to
ultimate holding company, amount due to a director
and secured note.

The Company’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, bank balances and
cash, other payables, amounts due to subsidiaries,
amount due to ultimate holding company, amount
due to a director and secured note.

(b) S5 J B 45 B 1 A B BOSRE

AR M 2 T2 T RS gl
BOE - MEWCE ) B HABARAR ~ 52 BRI
AT MATHIBR Bl - AT
oy BFABHRER ~ SRATIE 6 - AVE TR
BAE - MEAT R AR A RO ~ EAS
— R H SRR o

Ay ) R A TR LA AT
B RO ARER - U A IR
A SRATHE B B MR AT AR
A MEATRR B 2 RIRAR - MEAT R A 45
Fe 28 RO ~ HEA — 44 3 O K
AR -
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Details of these financial instruments of the Group
and the Company are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group are exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and bank balances and
borrowing that are denominated in a foreign currency
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to the risk are primarily
United States dollars (“US$”), RMB, CAD and KRW.
The Group ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

6.

sl TH ()
(b) B 5 L Ba 48 P H A7 B BOSR ()

R AE A T 2 REAE A B RE A B
5 o BLEZAE 4 Rl T HAH B 2 BB 15
T35 E B (R R B ~ &1 RE JaL B S
b (B A% JEL B ) ~ {5 BB K i B 4
JEBS o A B Al R A % S B 2 BUR
HWHANN o GRS T
PR EERE > DAREPRBES LA L IR FI AT 2
207 E A 2 i -

17 53 i it
A1 FEE S i

AL T R IR R ALy AR LA
(BRI % 22 B i 5 32 I AR Bl 26755 2 )
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the relevant
group entities at the end of the reporting period are

ik TR

Annual Report 2013

(%)

—x-=#4% 117 N

(b) B 5 L Ba 48 P H A7 B BOSR ()

5 g (4)
S B (4H)

RGNS A S R D R R
DSz B Az B EE KA

fig

as follows:
The Group AL
2013 2012
—FE = S
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
i =0 23 AR
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THETT AR
US$ ESSH 66,360 120,579 79,604 27,962
RMB PNRY: 1,330 645 31,653 15,613
CAD ot 2,961 L - _
KRW it [ - - 312 19,820
70,651 121,224 111,569 63,395
The Company A
2013 2012
—E—= TR
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
B =L B =4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Us$ EI0 927 116,316 - -
CAD e 2,961 5 - _
3,888 116,316 - -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

it TR ()
(b) B 5 L Ba 48 P H A7 B BOSR ()

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and retained
profits) and the Company’s loss after tax (and
retained profits) that would arise if the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group have significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed
that the pegged rate between the HK$ and the US$
would not be materially affected by any changes
in movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.

5 kg (4
S B (4H)
BURE A

N RBURA L B B A m R
gL FH R By 2 S REE < 7 5 H A )
B SE BER PR s 1 (S OR B R A1)
Je A m BB AR Ui A1) (% AR B e A))
Z BN O AR A B 5 R
5 o LIS > T3 B C 4 2 kT
S 5% T REE R A [ 5 70 it HL A B BE
B AE B 2 AT ] 538 Bl i 32 3 TR A28

The Group A
2013 2012
St - S
Increase Increase
(decrease) (Increase) (decrease) (Increase)
in foreign decrease in foreign decrease
exchange in loss exchange in loss
rates after tax rates after tax
HhIERER  BRBLZ IR ShiiER  BRBEER
kA (FR)  (EH) /FHB EH(FE) (BT /TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
US$ S 1.0% (453) 1.0% 431
(1.0)% 453 (1.0)% (431)
RMB PN 2.0% 11 2.0% 268
(2.0)% (11) (2.0)% (268)
KRW it ] NARBEH  NARBEH 7.0% (1,140)
NARER  NARBER (7.00% 1,140
CAD mrc 6.0% (148)  N/AREA N/AA
(6.00% 148  N/AREH N/AAHE




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

Annual Report 2013 —F — = £ H#H ]]9 [

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. “MTH ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) FA% R B H AR R BOR (4H)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) i 5 b B (#8)
Currency risk (Continued) S FEJE g (%)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) WURE AT (48)
The Company A
2013 2012
- St TR -TE
Increase Increase
(decrease) (Increase) (decrease) (Increase)
in foreign decrease in foreign decrease
exchange in loss exchange in loss
rates after tax rates after tax
R BRBIRIEE SMEIER  BREUEER
kA (FR) () /FB EF /(PR (BT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T
US$ ey 1.0% (963) N/AREH — NAREH
(1.0% 963  N/AREA  N/AREH
CAD e 6.0% (148)  N/ARE N/AT
(6.00% 148  N/AREH N/AAE

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the group entities’ profit or loss for the
year and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

LRI EINZ A AR BUR A S F &
RV EL R LA 3] 2 e 6 W I
SR 2 BEE S 5 68 oy W T ey 2 A T ik
A Bl 12 B £ 2 RIVIRF 5 DF SE28¢ o

THURRIE AT LR B SN RE R 2 S
JRPS TR AR S I T4 A I R
S A A 5 o T Bl 7 L i 2 <
FE BB o BEOMAT S ELAE A 3t S5
Z B AR A AR ] 2 2 R
PR Z 2280 o L IH T IR B %
— AR 2 ST o
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
obligations under finance lease (see note 30 for
details) and secured note (see note 36 for details).
The Group and the Company currently do not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group and the Company
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank borrowing (see note 29 for details) and variable-
rate bank deposits.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to
interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow interest
rate are mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
(i) prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s
and the Company’s bank balances denominated in
HKS$ and (ii) RMB base deposit rate stipulated by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s and
the Company’s bank balances denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points (2012: 10 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

6.

il TH (5)
(b) A% JEBEAE P H B R BUR (48)

i BIRBR ()
e

ALEE BANFHHE BMEMER
LA A E A R JE B LREE30 -
DA GE ff ) e AR SR R (B R
36 > LARRMERENS) o A4 H i
A AP BOR o SRTIT B o
AR o SIS TE K R B RR R
JE B s 25 B PR HCEC At BT 75 4T 8]
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2012: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease/
increase (2012: increase/decrease) by approximately
HK$58,000 (2012: HK$91,000) and the Company’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,000 (2012:
nil).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group and the Company is arising
from the carrying amount of respective recognised
financing assets as stated in the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group and the Company have delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group and the
Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
and the Company’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

6.

Annual Report 2013 —F — = £ H#H

il TH (5)
(b) A% JEBEAE P H B R BUR (48)
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC (2012:
Hong Kong), which accounted for 43% (2012: 46%)
of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2013.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 33%
(2012: 23%) and 70% (2012: 58%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Except for the above, for the year ended 31 December
2012, the Company does not have other material
credit risk as most of the remaining receivables are
balances due from subsidiaries which are guaranteed
by Ultra Harvest Limited.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
and the Company monitor and maintain a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following tables detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

6.
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(b) A% JEBEAE P H B R BUR (48)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables

Annual Report 2013

6. sRTH (7H)
(b) B 5 L Ba 48 P H A7 B BOSR ()

B & bR (AE)
E) & 2 /E R 37

“z-=¢4% 123 N

The Group ASEH
2013
“E =
More than ~ More than
On demand oneyear  two years Total
or within but less than but less than undiscounted
oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  cash flows Carrying
IR —4EfE MAERE  KETHBE amount
—4EN Fi4EN TR i IR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti#x T Tix T
Non-derivative financial JERTA: A b L1
liabilities
Trade and other payables JREATRE 5 e oAt B2k 64,000 = = 64,000 64,000
Obligations under finance WEMERE
lease 160 160 319 639 577
Amount due to ultimate T e AR M
holding company YNGIE O - 17,852 - 17,852 16,565
Amount due to a director MR — 2 EHE A — 17,759 - 17,759 16,478
Secured note iR 8,821 132,074 - 140,895 116,316
72,981 167,845 319 241,145 213,936
2012
TR
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin ~ butlessthan  but less than undiscounted
one year two years fiveyears  cash flows Carrying
R —HfEH MEHE RIS amount
—fFR 4R TR AR BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk T T T
Non-derivative financial JERTA: Sl AL
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERTE 5 J oAt B 72,612 - - 72,612 72,612
Bank borrowing WITEE 20,102 - - 20,102 19,548
92,714 - - 92,714 92,160
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. “MTH ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) FA% R B H AR R BOR (4H)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B & B EE (4)
Liquidity tables (Continued) B EHERIE ()
The Company Y /N
2013
“F=
More than ~ More than
On demand oneyear  two years Total
or within but less than but less than undiscounted
oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  cash flows Carrying

HERK  ERE O BERE REBSE amount
—HN N wEN R M
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
Tt T Tt Tt Tt

Non-derivative financial R SR A

liabilities
Other payables JRE A5 H At AR ¢ 1,805 = = 1,805 1,805
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE B2 RIAERK 11,053 - = 11,053 11,053
Amount due to ultimate JREAT B A A
holding company NGIE0E] - 17,852 - 17,852 16,565
Amount due to a director JEAT— % & F R - 17,662 - 17,662 16,388
Secured note EAE 8,821 132,074 - 140,895 116,316
21,679 167,588 - 189,267 162,127
2012
TE—TAR
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin ~ butless than  but less than undiscounted
one year two years fiveyears  cash flows Carrying

IR RN MR RIBIBLIE amount
—HR WEN HIER B i
HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T Tkt T T T

Non-derivative financial JERTA: S A 1

liabilities

Other payables JEAF ECA AR R 225 - - 225 225

Amounts due to subsidiaries  JERTFHE 2 7lHE 17,387 - - 17,387 17,387
17,612 - - 17,612 17,612

(c) Fair value (0 »REMH

The directors of the Company consider that the AN FERGEL  TRERS B R R )

carrying amounts of financial liabilities recognised in AN B BB AR DL R N AT Bk 2 <6

the consolidated and the Company’s statements of 1 Mo B AR MR TR (ELAR A

financial position approximate their fair values.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the sales of goods to customers less
goods returned and trade discounts, rental income under
operating leases and service income from hotel operation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sales of electronic components, properties investment and
hotel operation. The Group’s reportable and operating
segments, based on information reported to the chief
executive officer, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on good or services provided
are as follows:

(1) Composite components segment

Sales and manufacture of electronic components for
electronic appliances and communication equipment.

(2) Unit electronic components segment

Sales and manufacture of electronic components for
electronic appliances and communication equipment.

(3) Properties investment segment

Leasing office premises to generate rental income.

(4) Hotel operation segment

Operation of a resort in Canada.

No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
has a new reportable segment, hotel operation upon the
completion of major acquisition of certain assets pertaining
to the operation of a resort located in Victoria, British
Columbia, Canada.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. rEbERL (48H)
Segment revenue and results 43 AR W i S S A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PUTF 2y A B 1 2 Wi g M SR 4% m] 2 0 S
results by reportable and operating segments: ST A Z T
Year ended 31 December 2013 BREFE =41+ "A=+—HILEE
Unit
Composite  electronic ~ Properties Hotel
components components investment  operation Total
At WAEFo  WERE WEEE it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TH#T T# TH#T TH# TH#
Revenue e 145,750 146,934 1,662 4,376 298,722
Segment loss il a3 et (11,864) (17,985) (6,656) (875) (37,380)
Unallocated operating income RETEB WA 4,643
Unallocated operating expenses EN Nt (20,575)
Finance costs R A (2,441)

Loss before tax

BRI 1R

(55,753)
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Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. EFER (7H)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) vig L&Y ES WE D)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and U\Tﬁ’bzl-‘% LPAlE N ES TS V&1
results by reportable and operating segments: ST A Z T
Year ended 31 December 2012 WEZ -+ A= HIEFE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations g% Eliminations Total
o e B Bl st
Composite  Unit electronic Properties
components  components  investment Total
Bah BT BG4 st

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tk Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n

Revenue s 199,257 162,218 2,078 363,553 169,240 (57,619 475,174

Segment (loss) profit i (et ) i Al (16,941) (17,302) 6,221 (28,022) (31,676) - (59,699)

Unallocated operating KA EEH I

income 8,049 285 8,934
Unallocated operating KA/ ER %

expenses (379) - (379)
Finance costs BRI (44) - (44)
Loss before tax FRBi A (19,79) (31,391) (51,187)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are A SRR R 2w EOR B AAE R
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in WA EE3 B ad) AR o 70 (548 i
note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss from) *U?‘é%ﬁj\%ﬁﬂ?% (58 P A1) > 5 epalf
profit earned by each segment without allocation of other CER > 2 HAB WA ~ HAB AR B S
income, certain other operating expenses and finance F‘lﬁ‘lghﬁzﬁ I T ey 2 A R SR A LA
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating DoE G AT B R R B 2w

decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. EFER (7H)
Segment assets and liabilities o1 R A S FL 1
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and REE-F - =FtT A=t HA=F
allocating resources between segments for the years ended — A=t -HIEE . BEES
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012: FRRBL B AE A5 7 B 2 W) 7 B R
e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other o JIAEESHE ] ZWH 0 e K
than cash and cash equivalents, intangible asset, B EY) ~ WG B
goodwill and part of other receivables. Assets used HABRECRER Sb o W] 28 B 3L A 2
jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the G IR AR 5 K
basis of the production capacity; and
e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments o JTEARSELE T EWMOI > B H
other than part of other payables, amount due to b B A R K~ B AST i A% 4 R WD K
ultimate holding company, amount due to a director, JA - Féﬁ AR ~ AR
secured note, bank borrowing, deferred tax liabilities ATIE B IERERLIE A E DL X RE
and obligations under finance lease. B HALRR 9 ho
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PATF 2 A B2 [ 2 7 B A4 v 2 o0
liabilities by reportable segments: FiEZ 3 #fr
Year ended 31 December 2013 WE =+ = —HILFE
Unit
Composite electronic ~ Properties Hotel
components  components  investment operation ~ Consolidated
Henh BAETCE  YERE  WEERE A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt TH#IT T

Segment assets NERE 57,785 52,696 29,843 115,975 256,299
Unallocated assets KRN ERE
— Restricted bank deposits G 10,007
— Bank balances and cash - RITER RS 67,859
Others Hitr 14,205
Consolidated assets BARRE 348,370
Segment liabilities HER 27,064 27,284 74 7,832 62,254
Unallocated liabilities FENEARK

- Others B 166,049

Consolidated liabilities Baak 228,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2012

Annual Report 2013

SR RE (%)
gy Hl e S FLAE (B

“z-=¢4% 129 HE

PATN 7y A= 5 B 2 g B A9 P S W0

BTt o3 #r

I A S LA

Composite  Unit electronic Properties

components investment  Consolidated

WA E o PR E ey

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

THIT THIC THIC

Segment assets i<y 39,439 56,311 161,197
Unallocated assets KA G E

~ Restricted bank deposits — ZPRHERI TR 11,009

— Bank balances and cash - RITE RS 99,241

Others HoAth 10,775

Consolidated assets HRERE 282,222

Segment liabilities =k 25,675 70 47,041
Unallocated liabilities R BLAM

- Bank borrowing - AT 19,548

— Others - HAt 48,863

Consolidated liabilities A 115,452
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Other segment information

Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

Year ended 31 December 2013

SR RE (%)
HoAth 3 R R

VAR Z w820 v v 1) 58l 18 57 3 0 7 P

FEAZ R

BRE_Z=ZATH=Z1—HIEE

Unit
Composite electronic ~ Properties Hotel
components components Investment  operation Unallocated Total
A BEEFUHE O PRRE WEER it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Additions to non-currentassets R EHBEE 3212 3,234 - 114420 1,741 122,607
Depreciation and amortisation P 4241 4275 = 346 459 9,321
Gain on disposal of property, EYE - R Rk
plant and equipment et = = = - (50) (50)
Change in fair value of REMELLAREEHD
investment properties - - 5157 - - 5157
Loss on disposal of investment HEREE L BR
properties - - 2,956 - - 2,956
Impairment loss recognised FHERMZ T BT
on land and buildings held WL B EER
for own use - - - 873 - 873
Impairment loss recognised R 5 B LR
on trade and other receivables bt g 35 36 - - - 7
Reversal of impairment loss I AR 5 e
recognised on trade and Ht )
other receivables LB EkH (158) (159) - - - (317)
Reversal of allowance for inventories 77 &4 ff [l 43 (1,063) (1,071) - - = (2,134)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Other segment information (Continued)

Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss

or segment assets:

Year ended 31 December 2012

Annual Report 2013

SR RE (%)

HoAtn o ¥ BB (48)
DTN oyt o 70 v M) s 4 s 8 o T

FEAZ R

“E-CZHEER

I A S LA

Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations E&it Total
b Fe B BRxH it
Composite  Unit electronic Properties
components  components  Investment  Unallocated Total
Eanlt  EUE Tl BV AN a5t
HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T T
Additions tonon-current KB FFHE
assets 2,739 241 - - 4980 36,227 41,207
Depreciation and e R
amortisation 4817 3,941 - - 8,758 5976 14734
Gain on disposal of property,  HE47% - ## Rl
plant and equipment 2 (166) - - - (166) - (166)
Change in fai value of R MBS
investment properties - - (4292) - (4292) - (4292)
Impairment loss recognised {54 1EA fiZ L RET
onland and buildings [ 2yati] g
held for own use - - - - - 2178 2178
Impairment loss recognised 4% B Rial 2 Wl
on intangible asset - - - - - 5,929 5,929
Impairment loss recognised e E 3 Ji LAt it
on trade and other [iya {17
receivables 71 014 - - 1,365 - 1,365
Reversal of impairment loss [ §REAUE 53 AL Mk
recognisedontradeand  RERRZ MBI R
other receivables (78) (64) - - (142) - (142)
Allowance forinventories 7/ 469 1513 - - 1982 347 543
Decrease in fairvalueof AR BT AR
financial liabilities at fair 22 F &K
value through profit orloss 7 /A R EH S - - - (5,908) (5,908) - (5,908)

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible asset and
deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

BOFRE: I 9B S L T~ TR )
ERN ST i pa i

131 1N
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. rEbERL (48H)
Geographical information b 1k 7 358 R
The Group'’s operations are principally located in Hong AL B ERAAEE - W nE
Kong, Korea, Canada and other parts of the PRC. K S 8 oAt b [ o
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from AL A B AN % P 2 R A S I AR
external customers and information about its non-current B B i B B 2 EORHR B A (B4
assets by geographical location of the assets excluding 1R REE SEH5 A B A BRAD) st B B FE S AN
those relating to discontinued operations are detailed T
below:
Revenue Non-current assets
We g JE B &
2013 2012 2013 2012
Y T I S e e S
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T THTT T T
PRC (other than Hong Kong) 1[5 (& #ER4M) 109,820 126,053 41,070 48,238
Hong Kong ik 79,636 153,865 12,366 9,800
Korea B[R 88,312 31,296 - 22,072
Canada JIEIN 4,375 - 113,246 -
Others HAth 16,579 52,339 = -
298,722 363,553 166,682 80,110
Information about major customers HREEERZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years A B R F RSO T R A A AR [ AR
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as H10% LA RS -
follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THETC
Customer A" %5 ! 64,373 N/AAR
Customer B ®FEZ! 32,333 N/A 78 32
Customer C' EFEH' N/A AR 22,049
! Revenue from composite components segment and unit ! 2 H A8 S TT R EA T IR L IR ©

electronic components segment.

? The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% of the total : AP A i i SO A A At A S [ A8 6 B R 10% LA
sales of the Group. o
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9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. HAtbW A KWk
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000
Tt Tt
Continuing operations FEREEY
Interest income from bank deposits SRATAF 3R 2 AL B A 636 135
Other interest income HAbF S A = 19
Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE - B Lkl
plant and equipment Z Wt 50 166
Scrap sales JBERHE 389 369
Decrease in fair value of financial liabilities YN R EERI AR R
at FVTPL Z R
ZA AR - 5,908
Gain arising from initial recognition of N B E R AR
amount due to ultimate holding ZIEAT B AR B R ERIA
company at fair value 2N S E R 1,287 -
Gain arising from initial recognition N B R AR 5
of amount due to a director at fair value 2 JEAT— & IR
20N e AEERE TN 1,281 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised [ 5% A MEE MK B I Al Rk
on trade and other receivables fifEsd 2 WA s 1R 317 142
Freight charge charged to customers 1] B 25 AR . o - 663
Others HoAth 683 1,247
4,643 8,649
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. 8 BUA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
Continuing operations FEREEY
Interest charges on: FE S :
Finance lease BEfE EAT 35 -
Interest on secured note HEPP SR A R R 1,679 -
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years i F.4F A {3 2 8817 S5 727 651
2,441 651
Less: amounts capitalised B C gAML R - (607)
2,441 44
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Bt b %

2013 2012
—F—= TE—TAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THETC
Continuing operations R B R
Hong Kong Profits Tax FHENEB
Provision for the year AR T R = -
Over-provision in prior years AT T R (5,879) (149)
(5,879) (149)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax v [ £ 3 B 74 B
Provision for the year AAE T 2,107 2,736
Under-provision in prior years BTEAE AN = 1,332
2,107 4,068
Deferred tax (Note 34) R A B IH (Fff5334)
Credited for the year ARAEEFEFIA (325) (71)
(4,097) 3,848
Notes: BFGE -
(@)  For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, (@) MWMRAALEEHEE_F—=F+_HA=1+—H

N = F— AR T = B IR R AR AR
JRERRBL I A1) > HOW M A B R SR
WS RSB o 75 s FIAS B S5 4% 40 B2 G 5 HIERRRL
i 2 16.5% FHE ©

no Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the financial
statements as the Group has no assessable profits for both
years. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

THIHEBTFTARAR ([FEIHE]D Kb
BETES (EI) H WA 62 BT
PSRBT ) DAAR AT BE Al 5 I RRURE 165 1) 43 Bl
25% (& — 4 1 25%) & 25% (& —
1 25%) FHE -

TR R 608 7 R R - ) JE R v [ £ 2 B
B #BE F-=H+_HA=+—HK
TR -THEFTAE T H IR A
i ) 4 2 B 2R B B 2 b 200,000,000 8 [
F11% » HHZ H I B 22% o BRIEAH &
Ah > IREEPT S S AR 10% JE BRFHmE -
PEET S+ A SRR
— AR T E A R R4 A R
BRI A > oA A S 1 o o TE S -

Provisions for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for Shenzhen
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”)
and Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. are
calculated at 25% (2012: 25%) and 25% (2012: 25%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year respectively.

The Korea Branch operated in Korea are subject to Korean
Corporate Income Tax. The basic Korean Corporate Tax rates for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are
11% on the first KRW200,000,000 of the tax base and 22% for
the excess. In addition to the basic tax rate, there is a resident
surcharge of 10% on the income tax liability. No provision for
taxation has been made as there is no assessable profit for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Canadian Corporate Tax is calculated at Federal tax rate TR AR FEBATBL T LAAS AR il 5 e L Ui
of 15% and British Columbia provincial tax rate of 11% M) 22 Wt S 36 15% M 9% Ja =F iy LU 2R A Bl R
on the estimated assessable profits for the period since 11% AL o PR A 0 ] T B e A1) >
commencement of hotel operation. No provision for taxation SR B HGR FTHR BE In SERASET AR o
has been made as there is no assessable profit for the period

since commencement of hotel operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The Group carries out manufacturing activities in the PRC
through its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kwang Sung and under the
terms of a processing agreement with a third party factory, and
has substantial involvement in these manufacturing activities
undertaken in the PRC. The profits earned are thus considered
to be partly arising and derived from the manufacturing
activities carried out in the PRC and partly from other activities
performed in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group claimed
a 50:50 offshore concession in respect of Hong Kong Profits
Tax which had been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in the year of assessment
1999/2000.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the Group the basis of its 50:50
offshore claims for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2006/07
in relation to the Group’s manufacturing activities carried out in
the PRC, and issued an additional assessment of approximately
HK$3,318,000 for the year of assessment 2001/02 on the basis
that the Group was not eligible to the 50:50 offshore claims
for profits derived from manufacturing activities carried out
by Shenzhen Kwang Sung. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$3,318,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in 2008.

In March 2009, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2002/03
amounted to approximately HK$6,423,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$6,423,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2009.

In March 2010, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2003/04
amounted to approximately HK$9,334,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$9,334,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2010.

In March 2011, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2004/05
amounted to approximately HK$4,305,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$4,305,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2011.

—z-=#4% 135 1N
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11. S BB 2 (48)

it

(b)

(%)

A [ 375 i LT 2 R TR DI 2 DA B AR i B
T 3 v TR T 57 2 — TEUIN T A9 2> ek A
R AT R G B o SR AT 2 B
T2 e B TR B o M ULPTBRI > %) > &6
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*lL (T 2 B T i A A R

T 305 43 B 0 25 6 A A A T 2 LAt % 8
%i&ﬁﬁ iUl o A SR 1 T s R 4
1 50:50 2 ik FR SR > T A USRS R i
\%hnh/gfizﬁm¢FH%£%%
ER o

BTN > BB R mARE E A A
%$%@f¢l%@ (TR TG B R
— BB EBEN BB E R
mm%ﬁ$?%ﬁzwﬁai%#$%@
A GG FLGEYIE R HEAT 2 R 05 B BT i B
i A=A 50:50 2 BEFE R > i —FE—
TR AR T AR A SR B 40 3,318,000
WIC o AN RN EF B LR N R 2
R AN s BB R R I E R 5 4
3,318,000 # 7T ©

R RIUEZH o FWBUG R 5 — 0
BEANGERLE A E - B BT T T AR
AEFEBE AT B E Al 50:50 Bl R 2 B ANETE
476,423,000 #5 70 © AN A ZFF JUE
+H =4 HEEEINEBL R
T 7 s B SR R i B 75 49 6,423,000
WIT

WEB—FEZH > FWBUE AL S —0
HANGERUE AR > W F T = F R
A BE B AT B L 3 50:50 Bt HUR 2 B AN ETE
B 479,334,000 70 « AAFINEE —F—
FAE+ A =+ — B IR EEH N TR
HRCE > IF AN WS BUE JR BRI B B R4
9,334,000 #E 7T

W EF = FBBE RS — 0
FEANTRUEANE » St EEN R R ERAE
5% AT BE _E #5050 B R 2 AN RERL
#14,305,000% 90 c KA EE —F——
FE+ A=+ — B I EEEEEINFERE
S NG N U BS SR B R B R B R K
4,305,000 %€ °
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11. FifaBib = (48)

BFGE - ()

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group’s operation has remained unchanged since
1999/2000, in view of the stringent approach adopted by the
HKIRD in treating 50:50 manufacturing offshore profits claim,
the Group had made provision for the previously 50:50 offshore
claims of approximately HK$35,996,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2009. In February 2012, HKIRD and the
Company have reached a compromise settlement in relation
to the Company’s taxation affairs for the years of assessment
2001/02 to 2007/08 (the “Period”). Based on revised notices
of assessment and letters received from HKIRD, net Profits
Tax payable for the Period has been revised to approximately
HK$24,239,000. As the Company had made provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax of approximately HK$33,891,000 for the Period,
the excessive tax provision of approximately HK$9,652,000
made in prior years had been reversed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 30 December 2011, the tax representative of the Group sent
a compromising letter to the HKIRD for the settlement of the
above tax demand notes. The HKIRD agreed to the compromise
and issued tax returns to the Group in February 2012. In 2012,
the tax reserve certificates of approximately HK$23,380,000
included in other receivables had been fully utilised to settle the
above mentioned tax payables.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June 2003, two
former shareholders, Mr. Yang and Kwang Sung Korea,
Ltd. would indemnify the Group for any tax liabilities for
period prior to 30 June 2003. Out of the above tax liabilities
of approximately HK$24,239,000, a sum of tax expenses of
approximately HK$8,478,000 should be therefore borne by the
two former shareholders. The amount was recognised in prior
years.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
has received revised notices of assessment from HKIRD, for
the three years of assessment 2008/09 to 2010/11. Based on
revised notices of assessment, net Profits Tax payable has been
revised to approximately HK$3,084,000. As the Company had
made provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax of approximately
HK$8,963,000 for the Period, the excessive tax provision of
approximately HK$5,879,000 made in prior years had been
reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2013.

In 2012, the Group made advanced pricing arrangement with
Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau concerning Shenzhen Kwang
Sung’s transactions with group companies. During the process,
the Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau demanded additional tax in
respect of transfer pricing adjustment for prior years. Under-
provision of approximately HK$1,332,000 has been made for
the three years ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011. The
amount was fully settled during the year ended 31 December
2012.

(b)

(%)

AEEEH— NI BRI Z
HERER B > BAT LA W BB R 7E R 3 50:50
Rk L5 U RS o R R b B B A T
% WMURSE B w1 2 50:50 B BRI
BE BT NES A=+ — B IREEE
i %935,996,000 #s JL I o A - F — 4
ZH BB R AAN R EE—
TR EE CERL G
([ RZ I 1) 8 — T AT R 7 6 - MR PE
BT 2 FTRL AN S A A B R 2 bR
4> EEZ I AT 2 RIS BT SR 24
24,239,000 ¥ JC o FH AR A B 2k R0 A
HH 7 v R A5 B 8 A 49 33,891,000 5 T > U
A i /R 2 68 A B TE 8 49 9,652,000 5
TeE#EEE —EF——F T+ A =1+—H
R4S 2 S AR g M A A T as = o

WoE——tE+ A= E s AEEBHA
R0 B R 45 AT b Al B A B 2
Zhik o BB R E % 2 o MR
— AR A AR E BB o A
A B #) 23,380,000 # T 2 fEBL R (FEA
%WE@%%)E%%%W%ﬁuL%Mﬁ
JH o

WIEAW A —FZE=4FA - +=02®
B AR5 240 > T 45 A RO e AR R OnE Ok
Bl S EE=AENA =+ H AT 2 AT
AT BEHS B M 1) A SR BAE R0 o AL > A
#lt 424,239,000 ¥ 70 2 Bl IE A - JEELY
8,478,000 5 7T 2 B JEL P <7 M 1 5% 1 44 i 3R
HRYE o RUBITERE S BRI AR TR -

BE-Z-=#+"A=+—HILEEH
% > ARNFENREIH B FBBUE R 2N
FIFIBAEE R &/ — 5 RiEE=
R FPBL AT 43T 2 FPBLIE A o ARPEACERT
ZREREA > AT RSB ET 2L
3,084,000 #5 G o HI AL B Bk aZ M 7E
T Uk ] 15 B0 188 4 40 8,963,000 #5 7T - M TE
AF I T AR 2 R AFUBL TELA A6 40 5,879,000 95 ot
CH#EEEE -2 =4+ A=+—H1
FEZ ARG R

A AR AR [ BRI sy B R 1
HA BEYIDE R BEEA R Z 585 2 A E
822 PF o AR > VI HLTT BH Rl 1
AT B T 2 S SR S AT REAMNI B K
BEETNFE - B —FERF——F
‘T AZEt—H IS REERE > BRI A
JE#11,332,000 00 » A —F—_F+—H
=t HIRAEER - B E RO -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. FfeBip % (48)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss A BEBLIE A #7548 42 2% HH BLER B A 5 18
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ZEHRAT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2013 2012
—E e S
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt THETC
Loss before tax BB AR
from continuing operations & A FRAE R ST (55,753) (19,796)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated Fie HRAE A BB ) e e
at the rates applicable to profit TR M 2 78 Bt
in the tax jurisdictions concerned Rl s 1 . 42 7B I (8,179) (4,076)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HUBLIE ?@W*T AnER
for tax purpose B S BB 5 11,602 5238
Tax effect of income not taxable HUBLIE R 5 P R
for tax purpose WA 2 B 2 (5,753) (1,864)
Tax effect of tax losses and other temporary R AL JE T R T
differences not recognised v A R 2 AR B) B IR R 1R 4112 3,367
(Over) under-provision in respect WA GREEE )
of prior years AL (5,879) 1,183
Income tax expense for the year AR TS B B
(relating to continuing operations) (F PR RS E7) (4,097) 3,848
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 34. IRIERIE 2 FEAE A R 34 -
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. CHIRRR R

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group paid a
special dividend by way of Distribution In Specie of shares
in a subsidiary, Jay Star, in which its subsidiaries carried out
the composite components and unit electronic components
operations. This resulted in the Group disposing of a
separate major geographical area of operations in Korea, as
the result from composite components and unit electronic
components operations in Korea of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are only
contributed by the subsidiaries of Jay Star.

AEFN —F— T4+ =+ —H L4
JE£ 22 L) 0 IR FL M B 2 ] Jay Star (Jay
Star Z Bt Ja§ 2> w4 F 88 & T B BT
W) Z e T IR AR FI S, o iR A
EHREE TR F -
H =+ — B b AF A w1 5 o K
PEFE T IO Z SERUEAE A Jay Star BT
JE AR - T R A B ) L R — R
i ) SE 5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

The Privateco Group was distributed to the Record Date
Shareholders on 11 December 2012. Thereafter, the
Group is principally engaged in the Retained Businesses
and the businesses operated by the Privateco Group
(i.e. Distributed Businesses) have been classified as

discontinued operations.

The loss for the year/period from the discontinued

operations is analysed as follows:

12.

AR ()

BEFE-TFF AT —H S RAAFE
B 22 By B IR TR SR HBOR o BEAg - R
S B A IR B SRS AN RIS A
B (AAEMIRIER) S5 A C AL
e ST

ENCi g i NN S v
SHTUNE

Year ended 1/1/2012-
31/12/2013 11/12/2012
L E TR
—E = —H—H=
+=ZH=+—H e St 2
LEE oA+ —H
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt TH#TT
Loss of the composite components ARAELE Wi Jay StardE [
and unit electronic components operations ¥ & IC/F K& AV E T
of Jay Star Group for the year/period JuE S 1R - (30,461)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)
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12. BRIEEEREH ()

The results of the Jay Star Group for the period from 1
January 2012 to 11 December 2012, which have been

Jay Star (£ i —F — " —H —-HZE_
F-THTAT BB ES (EK

LR A

i a S H A A TR R )

included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and K]
other comprehensive income, were as follows: o
Year ended 1/1/2012-
31/12/2013 11/12/2012
mE T AR
R = —H—H=Z
+=ZHA=+—H TR
1E4E B +=H+—H
HK$’000 HK$000
TF# T Tt
Revenue g~y - 169,240
Cost of sales S A = (155,223)
Gross profit Eevill = 14,017
Other income HAthsge A = 15,165
Selling and distribution expenses S5 R o3 81 BH 52 - (7,175)
Administrative expenses TTEBA - (20,492)
Research and development expenses g <7 - (22,231)
Other operating expenses o Ath 4825 B 5 - (10,675)
Loss before tax FRBLTT 1R = (31,391)
Income tax credit IRET R - 930
Loss for the year/period AAESE W R = (30,461)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. DRIEREEE (8)

(Continued)
Loss for the year/period from discontinued operations AAERE SRR A A 1R KR TS 2 1R
include the following: FAENF
Year ended 1/1/2012-
31/12/2013 11/12/2012
& “E-TF
“E-=k —H—HZ
+=A=+—H “E-TF
X33 +ZA+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x Tt
Interest income from bank deposits ST ZFBIA (11)
Other interest income HAF S A ©)
Auditor’s remuneration A G 107
Minimum lease payments under operating leases KalE T 2 RIEHEERK
— hire of properties = IkZES 1,028
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration B TR (LSRG k141
disclosed in note 14) ZHEEME)
- salaries, wages, allowances —Hid o TH - B
and other benefits in kind R E A E AR A 31,587
~ retirement scheme contributions R LUSHE [P 2,693
34,280
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense THERD I B S 2 AP B A 113,010
Amortisation of intangible asset LA 1,09
Impairment loss recognised on intangible asset A & iR BB R
(included in other operating expenses) (FREAHABRE B ) 5929
Impairment loss recognised on land AR E R Z i
and buildings for own use BT e 2 e R
(included in other operating expenses) (FEAHABLE B ) 2,178
Net foreign exchange losses HE 5. s R 614
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales) T BB TS E A 3,473
Depreciation g 4,942
Less: amount recorded under government grant BT RRG F kG2 2% (61)
Amount charged to the consolidated R R A S A R R
statement of profit or loss and X B
other comprehensive income 4,881
Interest charges on: FEBR:
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years JER LA N A R 2 SRATEER 2,302
Less: amounts capitalised BRI (2,302)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

During the year 31 December 2012, Jay Star Group
contributed approximately HK$39,801,000 outflows (2013:
nil) to the Group’s net operating cash flows, approximately
HK$33,908,000 outflows (2013: nil) in respect of investing
activities and approximately HK$65,529,000 inflows (2013:
nil) in respect of financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Jay
Star Group at the date of the Distribution In Specie are
disclosed in note 40.

Annual Report 2013 % — = £ 141 1IN

12. BRIEEEREH ()

#WEF—-"F+ " H=1+—H> Jay Star
45 18] ) A 42 18 5 K 47 39,801,000 7 T 45
FERAmE (CFE =4 ) iEEH
M5 > B k433,908,000 # Tt (%
— TAE M) MtREIS BN S > HEA
65,529,000 #E LA (& —=4F @ ) o

Jay Star 5 B E W) /3 IR E H & E R AR
HR T {E B A BT 40
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

13. AR4EFEEH

2013 2012
—E -4 TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THIT

Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ A4FEBE2E [ RRAE 408 7

has been arrived at after charging Z IR (FEA)

(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration 72 BTN 4 515 615
Minimum lease payments for rented KEHE N 2 RIKHE

premises under operating leases sk - HHYE 7,206 3,375
Gross rental income less outgoing of G N ]

HK$130,000 (2012: HK$149,000) (F11B% 3 $5130,000%5 78

(ZF—_4F1149,000¥70) (1,532) (1,929)

Staff costs (including directors’ BT (R4 5

remuneration disclosed in note 14) R 14k R4

— salaries, wages, allowances, long service ¥4 T - A -

payment and other benefits in kind IR & I 73,658 52,461
— retirement scheme contributions — BARFHB 2 itk 2,536 1,939
76,194 54,400

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense AE Y 2 B A 174,697 228,330
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYEZ EH 2,956 -
Impairment loss recognised on trade HURE R 5 e HL A R A 2

and other receivables Z R E

(included in other operating expenses) (FEAHAL AL E B ) 71 1,365
Impairment loss recognised on property, LIRYE S SIS

plant and equipment Z WE 873 2,178
Net foreign exchange losses I 52l 1 15 A 2,086 1,730
Allowance for inventories R

(included in cost of sales) (FF S8 A) = 1,982
Reversal of allowance of inventories 17 BT A e 138

(included in cost of sales) (FHASHE RA) (2,134) -
Depreciation e 9,321 8,758

Minimum lease payments include an amount of
approximately HK$1,459,000 (2012: HK$1,739,000) for staff
quarters which is also included and disclosed in staff costs.

REHEMRUTEHEE TESZH
1,459,000 #5 76 ( =& — Z4F 1 1,739,000 #5
JC) o HARRINMEE R SR AL B TR o
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Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EREEEFRITBEANEZHE
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 17 (2012: EAT BN T 17 (8 R ATECEE (—
17) directors and the chief executive were as follows: — AR 1) 2T
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ=81T"HA=+—"HIL4HE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits
in kind schemes
Fees $i4 -~ @Bi%  contributions Total
e LEDHEA  BKGHE % At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T Tt Tl
Executive directors HITES
Mr.Yang (Note 1) A (MR - 91 1 92
Mr. Lee KyuYoung (Note 1) Z=E 5S4 (Ffl5E1) - - - -
Mr. Hong Sang Joon (Note 2)  E#fH#EE A (FffE2) - 1,124 15 1,139
Mr. Leung Kin Pang (Note 3) B4k (Ff5E3) = 1,625 15 1,640
Mr. Li Zhi (Note 3) 2 A (WE3) - 1,060 L 1,060
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Note 3)  fi {25 52k (ff3E3) - - - -
Mr. Shen Ke (Note 3) HR S (BREES) - 600 - 600
Mr. Shen Yong (Note 5) 15 S (BfteEs) - 1,142 = 1,142
Mr. Xu Li Jian (Note 3) Tror BESEAE (K5E3) - 2,400 = 2,400
Non-executive director T ES
Mr.Yang Ho Sung (Note 1) i B A (D) 4 = = 4
Independent WP ES
non-executive directors
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (Note 1) 4 1FHEf# -+ (FftE1) 2 - - 2
Dr. Han Byung Joon (Note 1) %N & i+ (FftE1) 2 = = 2
Mr. Kim Chan Su (Note 1) SRS (MH5ED) 3 - = 3
Mr.Yu Lei (Note 4) wE e (fhtd) 118 = = 118
Dr. Jiang Ying (Note 4) T L (fatd) 118 = = 118
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (Note 4) &3 B &+ (Kfik4) 118 = = 118
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann 7] 5§ 30564: (f3E5)
(Note 5) 171 - | 171

536 8,042 31 8,609
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EFEEERITBEANEBEZME (4)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-F -+ A= HILEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits
in kind schemes
Fees ¥4 HAS contributions Total
4 REYREA ARG EE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT THs T T T T T
Executive directors HITEF
Mr.Yang (Note 1) BeAEA (BEL) - 1,750 14 1,764
Mr. Lee KyuYoung (Note 1) ZEE 34 (Bt k1) - 784 14 798
Mr. Hong Sang Joon (Note 2)  #E#EHESEA (Fff3E2) - 1,144 14 1,158
Mr. Leung Kin Pang (Note 3) (77" RS EE (F5E3) - - - -
Mr. Li Zhi (Note 3) 2R A (HH5E3) - - - -
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Note 3) "F]{ﬁﬁééf'ﬁéli BiE3) - - - -
Mr. Shen Ke (Note 3) A S (BFEES) - - - -
Mr. Shen Yong (Note 5) F B S (MFES) - - - -
Mr. Xu Li Jian (Note 3) TRAL BRI (HFsE3) - - - -
Non-executive director FPTEF
Mr.Yang Ho Sung (Note 1) ik B 5T (B EEL) 200 629 - 829
Independent BT E S
non-executive directors
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (Note 1) 4 IF -+ (KfiE1) 88 - - 88
Dr. Han Byung Joon (Note 1) $# A& f# L (Bffk1) 98 - - 98
Mr. Kim Chan Su (Note 1) S8R (kD) 98 19 - 117
Mr.Yu Lei (Note 4) wEe (fhatd) - - - -
Dr. JiangYing (Note 4) Fpad A (f ke - - - -

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (Note 4)  5RZRH &+ (FfitEd) - - - -
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann &) B 30564 (KtE5)

(Note 5) - - - _
484 4,326 42 4,852
Note 1:  The directors resigned on 7 January 2013. BiaE1 s REEEHR % =F - H-EHEHE -
Note 2:  The director was appointed on 20 January 2012. MaE2 : ZERR -F - TE A T HERL -
Note 3:  The directors were appointed on 17 December 2012. WFEES - z;i%%ﬁ@:g*:@ +-A+tHE
Note 4:  The directors were appointed on 7 January 2013. Wit © ZFEFR F— AFE L AR -
Note 5:  The directors were appointed on 18 January 2013. fisks : EEEFR T -=Z4F-H P AHEZR

£ e
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

14.

15.

DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Yang was also the Chief Executive of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to
7 January 2013. Following his resignation, Mr. Ronald
Lew Podlas is the Chief Executive of the Company. Their
emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012. No emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to the chief executive nor any of the
directors as inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, five (2012: three) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are included
in note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining two
individuals, who are members of senior management,
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2013: nil) were as
follows:

14.

15.

—z-=#4% 145 1N
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ERMARBATRANRZME (4

WE-F -+ A=t -HBE-F
— S A B AL - R AAT2
FHBCARIR - fEMLBRIT R + @IBZESE/E HhfE
AT Z AT - F A 2 M 4
I AE TSR T -

wWE_F - _FL T -=F1T A
=t HIRFE - B R S R AR AT BN
BSAT TN & o B —F - AR CF
—ZFEF A= HIREE > B
AT > LUR AR (I A SR I AR
AR I IRl 2 ARG 2 A 1

B TH M

LA EmH AL HPag (ZF——
=) BAR TS RATHRR K
P <8 8 b SCRFRE 14 AR B8 o HAtL
P (DT M) fe N 2 B
FIUNE -

2013 2012

B =4 N S

HK$'000 HK$000

T THTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Hrar - G L EYREA - 1,909
Retirement benefits schemes contributions  ERFFEI1E 3k - 20

- 1,929
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. B LH M (48)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: A" 2 P < SR T S B G
Number of employees
IN
2013 2012
It S —F-CF
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,00095 70 - 1
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,000% 7T 421,500,000 7T - 1
- 2

16.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
tive highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, pursuant to
the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 5 December 2012,
a special dividend by way of the Distribution In Specie of
Jay Star Group was distributed to the shareholders of the
Company, amounted to HK$111,773,000. Details of the
assets and liabilities distributed are set out in note 40.

Except for the above, no dividend was paid or proposed
during the year ended 31 December 2012, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

16.

BB F SR
St B AR - A4 B A
A o DTRG0 A SR A A
S o R B o

JBe 8,

A TR AR IR B B R IR B R
i i R DA A ST i 2 SR IR B T AR o

W oF—TFEF A=+ HIEEE - R
PEARNFBHRD —F— A+ H
T2 IR E 2 e > CUEY
) A A RS UR Jay Star £ FIVE 24 Rl
REB > #5%0111,773,000 5T © i3Ik 2
G M B 2 R RO B EE 40 ©

B bt oh s A F— "+ H=+—
H 1E A7 G R 9 sk B s IR BE A D, > AR
AR DA A SR IR B AT I o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

17. LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—z-=#4% 147 N
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17. FkE#E
REFEKSEEBERCORIEEEE
%

AN E A N REAG B SRR A S i 518
RS EEE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THETT
Loss N5 R
Loss for the purpose of basic VAR R A K
and diluted loss per share pagi 2 RAINDY a5
Loss for the year attributable to owners AN TR N REAG AR
of the Company Z 1R 51,656 52,339
Number of shares JBetn B H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  ffJ LAG 14 B 3L A I
for the purpose of basic v 22 R P 3K 2 PR e
and diluted loss per share SEE 323,896,933 323,896,933

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as the Company has no dilutive potential shares
outstanding for both years.

FE A 79 {1 4 BE AR 2 ) 42 S A B A 2
Py > i P AV A 1R AL g P A e $R A
G
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 17.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

HBUER ()

PSERF I EiS- & 371

A A N REAG A A 5 AR 5 205 2 B
FBCHREAS S S Il 1R 54 B BT

N R R A% DA 07 G5

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T
Loss for the year attributable to owners A FERA NHEAS
of the Company AAE 1R 51,656 52,339
Less: Loss for the year from Bk g A IR SER
discontinued operations b it = (28,695)
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss I DAGIH 3 [ FRAE 482 3605
per share from continuing operations BRI 2 1R 51,656 23,644

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation was HK8.86 cents (2013: nil) per share for the
year ended 31 December 2012, based on the loss for the
year from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$28,695,000 (2013: nil).

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

P 143 - S5 R A S M 25
R A -

RHOKIEREE
W~ T+ T A= HIREEK

H B A& IR K848 2505 2 5 1R 4 5 28,695,000
I (T —=4F - 4) FHE S BRREA K
BE TR 5 8.86 Mk Il (& —=4F ¢« 4E) o

Jiv FR 73 B B SOt BB A Ao 45 ) oy
FEAL AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ BEES Mttt

The Group AL M

Land and
buildings ~ Land and
heldfor  buildings

own use at held for Other
revaluation  own use at property,
model  cost model plant and
WEMEANE  HWABRX  Plantand  Leasehold Motor  equipment  Construction-
#EHMZ  FHESFEAN  machinery improvements  vehides  HM#iE.  in-progress Total

AT AT KEKGRE MERREE RE Rkl AR ait
HK$000  HKSO00  HKSOO  HK$O00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HK$000

T FiEn T T Fin T T Tin

COST OR VALUATION A

At 1January 2012 REF—"F—f—H 7,722 - 124,642 3,632 1,209 49499 63,850 314,554
Exchange adjustments [E st 4919 - 4249 97 3 516 5151 14,964
Additions HER 567 - 13,057 - 282 2,965 2433 41,207
Transfer to investment properties B £ 4% (22,07) - - - - - - 22,07)
Transfer from AR A TR
construction-in-progress - - - - - 1,610 (1,610) -
Disposds s - S (10 - (26) %) - s
Disposal through the Distribution @ E4) kM B A 7
In Specie of shares in a subsidiary  tfy & (52574) - (41,629 - - (14,002) (91,727) (199,927)
Eliminated on revaluation Bl (2560) - - - - - - (2,562)
At 31 December 2012 R-F-"F
+ZA=1—H - - 90,228 3,729 1,262 40490 - 135,709
Bxchange adjustments T i, - 4 2703 81 27 08 - 3243
Additions HR - 109,710 4773 850 1,81 5423 - 122,607
Disposals e - - - - (20 - - (20)
At 31 December 2013 RoF—=4
+-A=+-H - 109,714 97,704 4,660 2938 46,341 - 261,357
REPRESENTING %
Cost - 31 December 2012 WA= E—-"k
TZA=T-H - - 90,228 3,729 1,262 40490 - 135,709
Valuation - 31 December 2012~ fif - ~F—"4F
FoR=E-H - - - - - - - -
- - 90,228 3,729 1,262 40490 - 135,709
Cost - 31 December 2013 S
+-A=+-H - 109,714 97,704 4,660 2938 46,341 - 261,357
Valuation - 31 December 2013~ fifli - ~F—=4F
FoR=t-H - - - - - - - -

- 109,714 97,704 4,660 2,938 46,341 - 201,357
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

18. P3E - A Rt (49

AEH (%)

Land and
buildings ~ Land and
heldfor  buildings
own use at held for Other
revaluation  own use at property,
model  cost model plantand
HEHEAFE  BRKERX  Plantand  Leasehold Motor  equipment  Construction-
$#{EHMZ  AEsEEAA machinery improvements vehicles  Jiff#% - in-progress Total
ERIVT SONPAR YT S 1T LU i REkRl  ARIRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T T T T T T T
DEPRECIATION il kWl
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1January 2012 i S B Rl - - 101,673 328 1,108 35,238 - 141,304
Bxchange adjustments T i e 4 - 1331 76 % 405 - 1878
Provided for the year KRR 3 - 8,786 200 78 4% - 13,639
Tmpairment loss recognised CHRBEER 2178 - - - - - - 2178
Bliminated on the Distribution ~ EFHIMR I B2 il
In Specie of shares in a subsidiary i EERE £ - - (2437) - - 9,033) - (33,385)
Eliminated on revaluation EilliliEa (2560) - - - - - - (2,562)
Eliminated on disposals B - - (10,096) - (26) o) - (10,455)
At 31 December 2012 REZ—C&
FoAZET-H - - 77342 3561 949 30,745 - 112,597
Fxchange adjustments st - (37) 1,968 78 16 484 - 2,509
Provided for the year AR - 0 5,380 13 319 296 - 9301
Tmpairment loss recognised o 2 - 873 - - - - - 873
Fliminated on revaluation E4 s - - - - - - - -
Bliminated on disposals it e - - - - 20) - - 20)
At31 December 2013 RoE—ZAF
TZHZ1-H - 1,059 84,690 4072 1,082 341% - 125,09
CARRYING VALUES IR
At 31 December 2013 RoZ-ZF
ToAETH - 108,655 13,014 588 1,856 12146 - 136,259
At 31 December 2012 RoE-"k
TZA=T-H - - 12,886 168 313 9,745 - 23112
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ WEAR Bkt (%)
(Continued)
The Company A2
Other property,
plant and
Leasehold equipment
improvements Hiup - Total
MEWREE A B i 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THETC THETC
COST BAR
At 1 January 2012 W _E——4F—H—H
and 31 December 2012 PR R — AR
+=A=+—H - - -
Additions YRS 850 63 913
At 31 December 2013 o
+—-A=+—H 850 63 913
DEPRECIATION ies
At 1 January 2012 W —-"F—H—H
and 31 December 2012 R —F— 4
+o =10 - - -
Charge for the year AN LA 307 26 333
At 31 December 2013 i
+—-HA=1+—H 307 26 333
CARRYING VALUES W 1 i
At 31 December 2013 i
+—-HA=1+—H 543 37 580
At 31 December 2012 T E— AR
+=A=t—0 - - -

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis over the following useful

lives:

e  Freehold land is not depreciated

o Leasehold land and buildings held for own use

situated thereon are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of purchase

Plant and machinery 4-10 years

Over the term
of the leases

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles 5 years

Other property, plant and equipment 3-5 years

A SE ~ R Bl o O AR A 4
HAEITE

AHUK A ERERF A + g T I8

FRE B 2 AH 8 it R M 4 R i
RELAG A7 1) R LA ol P 4 0 2 e 3
(HREFEA B 50 4F) AT

e Bt 4-104F
FHEYEEE YA B AR
R 54F
HAbW 3 - Hess Mt 3-54F
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

CY

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use at revaluation
model were revalued during the year ended 31 December 2012
at their open market value. The valuations were carried out by
Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”), an independent
firm of professional surveyors not connected with the Group
who had among staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
same locations and conditions. The land and buildings held for
own use at revaluation model were transferred to investment
properties at fair value during the year ended 31 December
2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a impairment loss
on land and buildings held for own use at revaluation model of
the Group of approximately HK$2,178,000 has been recognised
in profit or loss. The fair values are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
similar assets within the same industry, adjusted for differences
such as remaining useful lives.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a impairment loss on
land and buildings held for own use at cost model of the Group
of approximately HK$873,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss. An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The estimates of recoverable amount
were based on its fair values less costs of disposal, which
was assessed by Roma Appraisals using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of similar assets
within the same industry, adjusted for differences such as
remaining useful lives.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to approximately
HK$607,000 (2013: nil) for the continuing operations and
approximately HK$2,302,000 (2013: nil) for discontinued
operations in the construction-in-progress. Borrowing costs
were capitalised at specific borrowing which bears interest
ranging from 5.2% to 9.06% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s land and buildings held
for own use of HK$108,655,000 (2012: nil) were pledged to
secure secured note issued by the Group. Details are set out in
note 36.

The land and buildings held for own use are situated in Canada
under medium-term leases.

18. P3E - A Rt (49

BT

@

(b)

(d

H.

A E AR A = B AR
B AR A B R AL BEARH R R AR AT 2
o BT 2 8 BT (EEA T HAG - %A (E
LA AJ 0 Y7 S0 ) 7 2 8 S St (A K
FRETAL A R m) (1 5R 15 BB AT A ) AT >
HEby B TR BRI S e A o Ah(E )
275 F TR ML SR 2 SR 3 2 T35 1058
WSS o A= F— = A=1—H
ERMBFHRAFEA N2 TR T
Hes PR TR ) 3K -

EEF = H IR
B A T A R R R A R B 2 o R e
F 2 W (E 518 49 2,178,000 #5 7T 74 18 25 HE
FR o 5% FABE T Ty LR 225 AR IR A T
SEREE B 2 AT B B A AR (FR R R R f
FIAERR 2 22 ) T fEE o

EEZF - H = H IR
B AR B B AR G T R R E R 2 L
Fe M 2 o B 5 8 4 873,000 #E T B 1E 25
TR o e Dol 2y P 2 B T (A A0 T
Wi Il 4 o AT e 4 A A A R T O 2R
A AR L oA 0ok 25 o 5 AAR T 4 i
5 LLEOE S MR T SR o 2 A g B
fEAE (A INFR R AR 2 22 5L) T e o

AEE =TT H = HIEEE
AR AR B A A0 S 2 TR i LR S B AR
#)607,000 570 (—F—=4F « M) REAE
A6 2L 2 e i TR A5 ALAR 49 2,302,000
WL (TR — = AF ) EARL o HERA
TI3% A B HE52% £9.06% 2 FIR5HE 2
FERIME T LAVEAAL -

W= A= —H s AEEE
FEA R Z T T > {E{E%) 108,655,000
Wt (B — 4 ) 2P IR IR S g AT
AR ] 2 AT AN L 2 R RIS RN B R
36) °

IR AR Z A BAE T AL &R DA
SRR AT ©
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. HEWZE
The Group
A
2013 2012
e St o TR T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THETC
Fair value A RfEE
At 1January w—H—H 56,292 29,930
Transfer from property, plant $§?@§ E E T S
and equipment (Note 18) A (Kiak18) - 22,072
Exchange adjustments i3 Eﬁmﬂ ki 395 ©2)
Disposal e (21,707) -
Change in fair value recognised R R 2
in profit or loss VAVIRI=LIER L@ﬁ (5,157) 4,292
At 31 December wt+—HA=+—H 29,823 56,292

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
lease to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment property.

During the year 31 December 2012, the Group changed
the use of one of the owner-occupied properties with a
carrying value of approximately HK$22,072,000 (2013: nil)
on the date of transfer from administrative function to
investment properties for earning rental income.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s investment properties
of approximately HK$20,223,000 (2012: HK$46,492,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong, the

ARSI B AN F 2 P A 1R SR A A R A I
FAAERRIUE & EATHEZ V) 564 )Y

BN EEEXGR > B8R KUEE
LUEVN X
PEE—F - TETF A HEE

AREEBTFHAFWEZ E > R
H ¥ Ho2N AR B (H 49 22,072,000 8 00 (%
— AR M) > AT REE A HEE Y L
HRELFR 4 -

REF = H B ALK
20,223,000 # 7T (=% — Z4F 1 46,492,000
i) zﬁ%%%aﬂ&ﬁ%%&%zk%
M SRAT R AR IR

2% BEEY ST L AU O

PRC and Korea under medium-term leases. Hip A EE -
The Group
A5
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
Breakdown by location: Mol 45

PRC =8 20,223 24,420
Korea ik B - 22,072
Hong Kong i 9,600 9,800

29,823 56,292
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. #EWE (74H)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on
a recurring basis.

BREWEZ A R EEG R

R A e AR L YE A R
HEY RN REELFE

The Group ALEH
Fair value
Fair value as at measurements
2013 2013
2R A EEEER
N St =
Level 2
(56 &%)
Recurring fair value measurement: KW R fEER
PRC Hh 20,223 20,223
Hong Kong i 9,600 9,600

There were no transfers between levels in fair value
hierarchy during the year.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2012 and 2013 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that dates by Roma Appraisals,
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. Roma Appraisals is a member of the
Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The fair values are determined using
market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis using market data which is publicly available.

In estimating the fair value of the investment proprieties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

AF RSl B 2 e 4 AR E 2 [ G 4 A
% o

AEBMZBEY RN —F - R
—ZET A= HZ A RE A EA
AF I 17 40 ] 28 2 g 7. SRl i 2 XS [
AEAGHEST o 2R G B R0 TR0 B T2 A
TR AL R B - B E R ST A
o 3t B ] ) S (B KB - % UM (E
Ty i 3 HLWRIA 222 W] L) SE AT
P T 355 R 2 - O RO A B A A T 7

E o

G BCEY) S 2 B > %Y
Z e iR Bt R P RE 2 BRI 22 (8
AE o HRIRF I 1) 2 A (6 77 36 B 25 4F 37 416 e
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20. 7 BB 2 w] 2 AR

—z-=#4% 155 1N

The Company
A% T
2013 2012
R St B S
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl T
Unlisted equities, at cost FEETBA WA E

At 1January h—H—H 260,250 359,014
Additional contribution AN R - 6,395
Capital contribution HE = 39,639
Less: Disposal W HE (6,395) (105,159)

Less: Disposals on the Distribution In W R IR E A R
Specie of shares in a subsidiary (Note 40) Ty R B (B EE40) = (39,639)
253,855 260,250
Less: provision for impairment loss (Note i) W WA R R (R D) (66,906) (66,906)
186,949 193,344
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note i) JRE ST 6 T 2 )R (ki) 118,243 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note ii) JRE AT o 2 wi) I ( Bf ki) (11,053) (17,387)
At 31 December wm—H=+—H 294,139 175,957

Analysed for reporting purposes as: TR R R

Non-current assets R E G 186,949 193,344
Current assets ENE 118,243 -
Current liabilities B A fE (11,053) (17,387)
294,139 175,957

Note i:

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying

F5Ei :

values of the investments in subsidiaries and considered that
in light of the operating losses of the subsidiaries and the
market conditions, total impairment losses of approximately
HK$11,258,000 had been recognised during the year ended
31 December 2012 (2013: nil). The directors of the Company
were in the opinion that the impairment was made based
on the share of net assets of the subsidiaries as at the end of

reporting period.

Noteii: The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and Bt

repayable on demand.

RAFHBHEFMRIMEA A ZHE
ZRTAE - 3 EE 2 i A PR S R 2 AR
B R LT R E - E
H =4 — H A B e 58 (8 s 4R AR A A
11,258,000 5 & ( — & — = 4F : ) o &<

AGIE & 35V

o AE T AR O R )

DA g 2 ) 2 W R R T R

SRR MR~ G S MR R AR o
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are as follows:

20. PR R AWl 2 HERR (AE)

RoF—ZAERCFE - =

H o> AN wME Al 2w E T

Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries FERAL /RS sharesheld DB RAERA/ by the Company Principal activities
kg AEWERAN  FRROER  CREMEA AR I 2 i BERESE H i FEEH
Directly Indirectly
i
2013 212 2013 2012
ZE2R SR 2R TR
Kwang Sung Electronics Hong Kong Ordinary HK§$253,855,129 100% 100% = - Investment holding
Holdings Company Limited ~ %3 L 253,855,129 T BB
EEETERARAR
Kwang Sung Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = - 100% 100% Sales of electronic
Holdings Company Limited it il 10,0007 components
(“Kwang Sung Technology”) HEE T
EMERARA
(DEERHR])
Shenzhen Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary US$10,561,780 = - 100% 100% Manufacture and sales
e Hi EEk 10,561,780 ¢ of electronic
components
RELHER Tl
Kwang Sung Electronics Trading ~ PRC Ordinary RMB500,000 = - 100% 100% Provision of sales
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd. il LMk AR I300,00070 agency services
HEETES (I ARAT to the Company
AR R

R



Annual Report 2013 % — = £ 157 N

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. R Wz HEdE (4)

(Continued)

Place and

date of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries MR/ BaL/ sharesheld BB RAREA/ by the Company Principal activities
Ak BEWEERE  BEREN  CREMEA AR R 2 i BERESE HL FEEH

Directly Indirectly
HH#% i3

2013 2012 2013 2012
e e S e S i S

HAEREET (FHI) PRC Ordinary US$824,370 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales

HRAH (Noteo) (Hita) Lk 82437057t of electronic
components
RESHERT L

Forebase Canada Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(Note b) Fik il 1T bra el

HAMEAARAH (Bitb)

Forebase Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - = - Investment holding
(Note ¢ wik il ity e

HE S AR A (k)

Forebase Victoria Holdings Canada Ordinary CAD1 - - 100% - Hotel operation
Limited (Note d) (Jffzkd) YN TR e T 4

Forebase Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - - - Investment holding
(Notee) wib il 1 e

RARRARAR (Hike)
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. R Wz HEdE (4)

(Continued)

Place and

date of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries ML/ BaL/ sharesheld BB RAREA/ by the Company Principal activities
Ak BEWHERE  PEROEN  CREMEA AR R 2 A BERESE HL FEOEH

Directly Indirectly
H#% 3

2013 2012 2013 2012
e e St e S5 i S

Forebase China Limited (Note f) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - - 100% - Investment holding
ALEA A A (D) i T 17 et
Forebase Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - - 100% - Provision of
(Note g) il el 1 administrative
FREREARAR (k) support to group
companies
HEBA AR
i
Notes: B 5 -
(@) It was established on 25 April 2012. (@) WEARAZFE— AR H R H AL .
(b) It was incorporated on 9 August 2013. (b)  FEAFEN F— =4\ JUH ML -
() It was incorporated on 8 January 2013. (¢ FAFRIRE—=4F—H/HEMRT -
(d) It was incorporated on 14 August 2013. (d) AN E— =AW H gE o -
(e) It was incorporated on 18 November 2013. () #adAit —FE— =4+ —H T /CH AR
s
® It was incorporated on 8 November 2012 (acquired on 16 ® F/Z/N) e et S o = s aVANI= S 1
October 2013).
(g It was incorporated on 10 January 2013. () ISRV R AR — A A H gk ST o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at A AT A S 2 0 7 A8 4 B A S 30 ]

the end of both years or during both years. AT B R S5 o
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21. GOODWILL 21. W%
The Group
AR
HK$000
THIT

COST JRA
At 1 December 2012 WwW_Z—_"F+_H—H 5,857
Distribution In Specie of shares e g 2 W A B UK (B 5E40)

in a subsidiary (Note 40) (5,857)
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 A F——"4#+_"A=+—H &

“E-=HEtT A= —H -

IMPAIRMENT WA
At 1 January 2012 WoFz——"4F—H—H 5,857
Eliminated on the Distribution In Specie B A3 IR > T IO RERRCE (BFF5E40)

of shares in a subsidiary (Note 40) (5,857)
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 A =& — "4+ "H =+—H X

e -

CARRYING VALUES W% T L
At 31 December 2013 Ww-oEZ—=F+_"_H=+—H -
At 31 December 2012 WoE——"Ft+_H=+—H -
The carrying amount of goodwill as at the end of each PR A S R 2 IR TI(EL AR B A S [ 6 B
reporting period are attributable to the Group’s cash- i FHl WireTape ™ 8 4% 110 7 it 2 31 B e /&
generating unit (“CGU”) representing sale of products WAL (TBBEAREAL) o
using WireTape™ cabling technology.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the goodwill RWE-F - A= HIRFE
was released upon the Distribution In Specie of shares in a Ao TR T BT ) 2 DR R 2 R R o 4

subsidiary (Note 40). (Ff5E40) »
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22. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 22, PR
The Group The Company
AL A4l
2013 2012 2013 2012
. e R e eSSt S
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T AR T T
COST A
At 1 January h—H—H 759 759 - 344
Transfer to its subsidiary A B 8 o A IR 1
upon Group Reorganisation BN} A - - - (344)
At 31 December wt—HA=+—H 759 759 - -
IMPAIRMENT WAL
At 1 January ih—H—H 159 159 = 61
Transfer to its subsidiary i A5 1 AL IR A
upon Group Reorganisation 2 H I - - - (61)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 159 159 - -
CARRYING VALUES fR i

At 31 December wmt—H=+—H 600 600 = -
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSET 23. B E
The Group
ALK
Patents
ORI i
HK$000
T#TT
COST BAR
At 1 January 2012 W F—"4—H—H 19,478
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 5 4 529
Disposal on the Distribution In Specie of B 53 UR B G 2 W) e R o B (B 40)
shares in a subsidiary (Note 40) (20,007)
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 j* —“F—_"F+_H=1—H K
—E =t A=t -
AMORTISATION 5
At 1 January 2012 W ——4HF—H—H 3,151
Exchange adjustments T 5, 4 105
Charge for the year A JEE i 1,095
Impairment losses (e 1R 5,929
Eliminated on the Distribution In Specie of i~ B ¥ 43 Uk & 2 &1 B 473 pess (B at40)
shares in a subsidiary (Note 40) (10,280)
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 j* —F—_"F+_H=1+—H K
e ey | -
CARRYING VALUES MR I A
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 j* —“F—_F+_H=+—HK
R -EZFET A=A -
The patents entitle the Group to manufacture products % S S £ HE A 4 I Wi B 17
using WireTape™ cabling technology over 17 years from AEA I WireTape™ #8847 $5 11 547 7 iy o 0
the date of acquisition. The carrying values will therefore Ut > FCHR AT (BRI A P AR S 1 74 g e o
be amortised over the useful lives of 17 years.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, all patents WEE - F—-—F+ _A=+—HI4¥
were disposed of on Distribution In Specie of shares in a JE > i SR HE T B 73 UK B 2 ) PR 03

subsidiary (Note 40). e B (FfF5E40) ©



| 1 6 2 Forebase International Holdings Limited 3t B I ¥ ik % R 2 5]

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 &k W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The Group and the Company

As at 1 January 2012, the amount represented investment
cost of HK$1,500,000 in unlisted equity securities in Hong
Kong. Full impairment loss of HK$1,500,000 had been
made on the investment cost in that entity in view of the
significant operating losses incurred by that entity.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the investment
cost of HK$1,500,000 had been written off in full as that
entity was dissolved.

24. Wk B

AAE [ B A W)
WoF—F—H—H > Z&BEIIERE
5 JE LT AR 75 24 1,500,000 5 T 2 BEE A%
AR o SN GE S| B EASE > widk
B E M 2 A 1,500,000 T EAEH 2
BOR (A

WEE - F— 4+ A=t —HIEF
B B R E R E 5 ME > 5% 1,500,000 #
T2 PG A TAF RSy -

25. INVENTORIES 25. AR&H
The Group
A
2013 2012
R =4 TE— AR
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
Raw materials A R} 8,676 10,277
Work-in-progress R 5,134 5,230
Finished goods B 11,435 10,877
Food and beverages Y KAk 778 _
Hotel merchandise )5 P 362 -
26,385 26,384

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain impaired
inventories were sold at profit. As a result, a reversal of
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$2,134,000
(2012: nil) has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain impaired
inventories of approximately HK$15,541,000 (2012:
HKS$4,671,000) were written off upon the cessation of the
operation of the Korean branch of a subsidiary (2012: upon
the discontinued operation of Jay Star Group).

REEEEF—=F+H=+—HIL4E
o ATEMEZFEEABEES - §#
Mo A7 B T 0] 138 49 2,134,000 # 6 (%
— A ) B E R - =F 1A
=+—HILEE R -

WEE -F—-=F+_H=1+—HI¥F
&> & B E 2 AF B8 415,541,000
HEoT (& — T4F 1 4,671,000 0T) B
— [V B A ) 2 s s SR A A L R
s (ZF— 4 ¢ A Jay Star D& IE&EE
FEVEIE) o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
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26. MEWCE 5 B 3t sk
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The Group The Company
N AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
Y SV 3 TE—TAE —R-Ek —E—TAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Tl
Trade receivables RN 5 62,332 66,479 = -
Less: impairment loss recognised ¥ : Wk (ks 1R f (10,960) (11,194) = -
51,372 55,285 - -
Deposits and other receivables T4 T HA T I B 19,275 8,094 4,616 -
Prepayments HAHOE 6,790 2,099 6,023 -
Total trade and other receivables MENTE 5 R AR SR A 77,437 65,478 10,639 -
(@) Ageing analysis (@) JRER MY
The Group does not hold any collateral or other A 1 Sl 0B A B2 ) MR R A A

credit enhancements over its trade receivables.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of impairment loss

presented based on the date of delivery of goods or
date of rendering of services which approximated the
respective dates on which revenue was recognised.

AT ity AR AR 3 SR 1 7 -

AEEMGTHEGEF 2 FHEEH
75305890 H - LT AR FF
5 £ 5 SR AR 1 B (B 55 e
FOH BRI ) B A AR SR R A
()& 5y REM K TR 1 BR B AT o

The Group
AL

2013 2012
TR A TE-TA
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt TH#TT
Within 90 days 90H N 50,054 52,961
91 to 180 days 91%180H 1,318 2,103
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - 221
51,372 55,285
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. MEWHE 5 AR (4)

(Continued)

(b) W B 5 Bk 2 AFL A 8L

A BR MBS 2 Mk 2 S (B 48 18 1)
MHRARRC Bk - A 4 B R 2% i [m] 33 IE
ZHEE ELOUBRAN - ZEBEE DL I (E
M TR B AR TE MBS B 5 B s

(b) Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly.

MoF—ZAE AT AR
9 2 JE i B 5 MR K 4 10,960,000 #5 7T
(—F—4F 111,194,000 0) EF
PR AE 2 ZH T A

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$10,960,000 (2012: HK$11,194,000)
were individually determined to be impaired.

A R L D L S R

The movements in impairment loss recognised
during the year are as follows:

The Group
AL

2013 2012
e TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x THETC
At 1 January r—H—H 11,194 10,000
Exchange adjustments A1 3 12 (29)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE R 71 1,365
Reversal of impairment loss o L e 4 ] 43 (317) (142)
At 31 December mt—HA=+—H 10,960 11,194

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables (c) i HI{H M fl < ME W B 5 %

which are past due but not impaired: SRR Z R o #

The Group
AL

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
T T T
Within 30 days 30H A 12,700 12,377
31 to 90 days 31290H 5,215 3,781
91 to 365 days 914365 H 178 1,408
Total A 18,093 17,566
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. MEWHE 5 AR (4)

(Continued)

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired:
(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$18,093,000 (2012: HK$17,566,000)
which are past due as at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the management believes that
no impairment loss is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered

(0 CiBIMH IR < HEWCE 5 &
SRR Z IR EE T ¢+ (A

AR B RE U o) Bk 45 B s R T
H{EA18,093,0004 70 (- F— 4 ¢
17,566,000 #70) > AR H A iR
W RENSCHRSK > T A 42 30 31 40 st L
PRI ARG -

70 0 1L 08 3l 2 MEE WSRO B A 4
M S A F A RAFIR A Pk 2 2 2
SEERFAR o MRIRLIERER > hiRE
BRI EE L - i B B
A Ao el ol e > SO B ARG
RS Al B A R (e A -

fully recoverable.
27. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 27. SZBRBISRIT Rk SRAT 45 AR %
BALANCES AND CASH BH4e
Restricted bank deposits 32 Rt SR AT F K

Restricted bank deposits represent deposit placed to banks
as security for certain banking facilities. The deposits will
be released within twelve months from the end of each of
the reporting periods and are therefore classified as current
asset.

Bank balances

Bank balances of the Group represented short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.39% (2012: 0.01% to 0.36%) per annum for the
year.

2 PR SRAT A7 5K 948 A7 HUR A T 8R47 247
o TAE S T HRATRVE RN o 3% 5
R AR TR 2% i o U D 45 SRR A
BRI - UL - BB BN B E -

SRAT A R

A M 7 SRAT &SRR 48 = A8 A B LT 2 )
ZHIHAEEK o INAAERE » SRATHE SR T
LR REH0.01% £ 0.39%FFHE (&~
41 0.01% £0.36%) °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. WEHFE 5 B H Ak
The Group The Company
AL A4l
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E = TE-TAE RS TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#TT T T
Trade payables MEATE B Wk 42,937 46,322 = -
Accrued expenses MEET
and other payables Fe H A AT AR 2 22,544 28,191 1,805 225
65,481 74,513 1,805 225
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables DATR By AR 5 A 0 0 R 2 47 0 g
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the 4 5 5 MR R 3

reporting period.

The Group
AL
2013 2012
e SN SR
HK$'000 HK$000
Tl T
Within 90 days 90 H A 33,955 41,978
91 to 180 days 91180 H 412 2,709
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 459 95
Over 365 days 365 H VA I 8,111 1,540
42,937 46,322
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 0 to 90 W2 FHEEHA0EIH - AEMERK
days. The Group has financial risk management policies A < R B B PR EOR o RRECR T A E A HRAK
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the G SR RS o

credit timeframe.
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29. BANK BORROWING 29. TR
The Group
A

2013 2012
B = S
HK$’000 HK$000
T Tt
Secured (Note) AT (FF5E) - 16,652
Unsecured TP = 2,896
- 19,548

As at 31 December 2012, bank borrowing bore variable
interest rate ranging from 5.2% to 9.06% per annum and
was repayable within 1 year.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group obtained
bank borrowing of KRW?700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,026,000) (2013: nil) from Industrial Bank of Korea. Bank
borrowing of KRW2,700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,548,000) (2013: nil) were secured by the Group’s investment
property in Korea of approximately HK$22,072,000 and is used for
financing the general working capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
repaid all the bank borrowing outstanding as at 31
December 2012.

W oTE - A=+ —H > BT EE
Y IR B R R FEANF-5.2% %£9.06% 78 K&
JE—F NI -

W E - E——HF+_H=+t—HIFEE, £
42 [ [4] Industrial Bank of Korea Bt 15 48 17 & &
700,000,000 5 [# (FH55 J~ £ 5,026,000 45 7T) (=%
— ZAF M) o 4R4T 1 $52,700,000,000 F B (A
JR#119,548,000 #8 7T) (=& — —=4F : M) DIAREHE
7 A i B 2 3 W 240 22,072,000 #s TR ISR &
fE— s a4 -

PEE T2+ A =1+—HI4¥F
B AEMHEHERIAR - FE— AET T
AZ=+—H &R 2RI EE -

30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE  30. @i&ME R
The Group
A
2013 2012
R = TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt TH#s0
Analysed for reporting purposes as: SIHTE 2 A&
Current liabilities =R 133 -
Non-current liabilities FETE) A & (LT -

577 -
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30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE  30. &M EHT (4)

(Continued)
The Group has leased a motor vehicle with cost of PEEF-=F+_A=+—HIL4¥F
approximately HK$702,000 under finance lease during the JE o A 2 DA A S AR A — WA E i
year ended 31 December 2013. The lease term is 5 years. A% 702,000 # 7T o FHEE I HAF - RUEAH
Interest rate underlying the obligations under finance lease B FAT 2 A B M 2 2 2 40 H AR 3
are fixed at respective contract dates at 2.75% per annum. 2.75% °
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BB 1 A B A sk B
2013 2012 2013 2012
R St e St B St TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt TH#IT T THETC
Amounts payable iy cgiNcusgine
under finance leases
Within one year — 4L 160 - 133 -
In more than one year i —
but not more than two years  {H /A& 48 {4 160 - 140 -
In more than two years but ~ H i 4
not more than five years {HR i AR 319 - 304 -
639 - 577 -
Less: future finance charges ¥ : A< il & 3¢ (62) - NAREH NAREA
Present value of lease AR SE B
obligations 577 -
Less: amount due for settlement 3 : >+l H A
within twelve months FIM&S
(shown under current FIH (A
liabilities) HE R (133) -
Amount due for settlement A+ A &£
after twelve months HEW R 444 -
The Group’s obligations under finance lease are secured by ALz MEHEF AR A EE

the lessor’s charge over the leased asset. FEE B BT AT REAE o KA o
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. A
Authorised and issued share capital: B BT -
2013 2012
e St o —F A
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bt #H ot Jii3py &l S
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Tk TH#T T T
Ordinary shares of RO (0. 1#8 7T
HK$0.1 each Z B
Authorised: g
At 1 January and R—H—HkK
31 December +=H=+—H 1,500,000 150,000 1,500,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BT MAE
pa 5l &
At 1 January and R—HA—Hxk
31 December +=H=+—H 323,897 32,390 323,897 32,390

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

T Ad AT A N A REWOROR IR E IR 2 SRR,

A FRA A FIR G b w] g B B iy = A — 5
B - A AR ZRIGREET S > A
28 B A [A] S HEF
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32. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 32. AR
Share Contribution  Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ettt hEGEH MR REGRA At

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt Tt Tt T Tt

At 1 January 2012 WoF——FE—H—H 58,566 8,478 (14,168) 239,381 292,257
Loss for the year NG - - - (47,649) (47,649)
Other comprehensive expense AR HCA 22 AT PR 52
for the year
- Exchange difference arising on — R T E A
translation ZIERER - - 1,545 - 1545
Total comprehensive income AR R TR
(expense) for the year (PR =2) 4% - - 1,545 (47,649) (46,104)
Special dividend by way of S 2IRBH A 7]
Distribution In Specie of shares et ) R
in a subsidiary HER % - - - (111,773) (111,773)
At 31 December 2012 A S
+-HA=1+—H 58,566 8,478 (12,623) 79,959 134,380
Loss for the year and total AP R 1R A AR
comprehensive expense R E
for the year - - - (11,820) (11,820)
At 31 December 2013 RZF—=AF

TZA=+—H 58,566 8,478 (12,623) 68,139 122,560
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33. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR 33. A REMEFIAEGEZ SRAE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group
AL
2013 2012
oS F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T AR
Fair value A RIEE
At 1 January w—H—H - 5,908
Release on acceptance of cash offer A 0 < A U A4 R A - (5,908)

At 31 December

wmt+—_HA=+—H

In March 2009, the Group and the Company entered into
a patent transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Seller”). The consideration
of approximately HK$10,242,000 was partially satisfied by
issuing 8,534,933 shares of the Company at HK$0.41 per
share (the “Consideration Shares”) to the Seller and the
remaining consideration of approximately HK$6,743,000
will be settled in cash along with put options (“Options”)
on period from the end of third year to the end of forth
year after the transaction (i.e. March 2013), under either
condition:

@  the Group and the Company will not be required
to make further payment if the share price of the
Company is higher than HK$1.2; or

@) if the share price of the Company is lower than
HK$1.2, the Group and the Company will be
required to pay the difference of the basis price (being
HK$1.2) and the share price, multiple the number of
Consideration Shares.

The details of the Options were set out in the Agreement
and the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2009.

R EFIAEZH o AL AR F L
SEEE =T (TE D5 ) §Tr— 0y BRI fE e
i (TR ]) - 1CME 410,242,000 7 >
Oy ¥R AR 0.41 W TR EE T 8,534,933 I A
epy (TRERG) TE > REGRED
6,743,000 ¥ JUHF A 28 5 2 AR5 AR IR 256
PUAETEHAR (BD —F—=4E=H) IR
BE(THIRE D) AL R OL T ABL A5 AT

(i) AL ElZ B EAS =R 12380
ASE I B A R IR SRR 5 B

(i) AHASL F Z B E AR R R 1.2 0T
ARSI B AR RS R AR A (B
1.2%670) SR A% 2 TR 2230 - o
DIACE B 3 -

JARE Z SRR Tk A A RN —E R
FZA=tHERZ A -

171 1N
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33. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR 33. A REMEFIAEGEZ SRAE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

The fair value of the Options granted is estimated at the
date of grant using binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the Options were
granted. The inputs into the model as at 1 January 2012
were as follows:

(#8)

Pz tH HAREZ 2 e B e RO — T U2 H
I7 A T AT HE 2 G S R AT A
it o A ZF— A H - Bz A
Lie 0K

1/1/2012

—F -4 —H—H

Dividend yield i B2 0%
Expected volatility FE A I s 85%
Risk-free interest rate A JR B ) S 0.9%
Expected life T4 1.25 yearff:
Weighted average share price TIREF- 34 A HK$0.600% ¢

The binomial model has been used as at 1 January 2012
to estimate the fair value of the Options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
Options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Seller
accepted cash offer of HK$0.9263 per share and HK$0.38
per share to sell the Consideration Shares to Ultra
Harvest and Smart Top Investments Limited, a company
which is wholly owned by Mr. Yang (former shareholder),
respectively. Accordingly, obligation under the options
was lapsed thereafter as the Seller no longer own the
Consideration Shares according to the Agreement.

MoT— 0 AR E
TR IOME 2  SU LA o 0 THE 2
{7 6 T 52 I (B 40 D B (3
B o MR (K 5 R 35 T IR A
2 R sl -

PERE—F—-"F+ A =+—HIF
FEWI > E 2Bl WBEL > 20l
2 5 1820.9263 ¥ JT M 55 11 0.38 ¥ 7T AR
f& B 13 % T Ultra Harvest 5 Smart Top
Investments Limited (FH fi B R 9264 &%
WA 2 7)) o FI > BERREIE T~ 2 HT0
A BETE DL BERR > R 2% O T AR U e
A RAERA -
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34. MEHEHIH

TS B T 22 B 5 IR L 3 1A it R 2 O S o IE
BRGSO R 2 BB R

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the Group’s statements of financial position
and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
The Group AL M
Revaluation
of land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances own use and
in excess of investment
related properties
depreciation  H i F¢fE H
BHEMTE ZLHEEF Patents Total
ZIERAE  URBREWE IR At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THIT THIT THTT THTT
At 1 January 2012 W oE—"4E—H—H 826 9,428 2,247 12,501
(Credited) charged to R GEA) FIE
profit or loss (Note 11) (BfteE11) (619) 548 (930) (1,001)
Decrease arising from the TRE Y 70 IR B 2 )
Distribution In Specie of B3 R
shares in a subsidiary (Bt 3E40)
(Note 40) - - (1,317) (1,317)
At 31 December 2012 N T — AR
+ZH=4—H 207 9,976 - 10,183
Charged (credited) to B A (FEA)
profit or loss (Note 11) (BFEE11) 124 (449) - (325)
Release of deferred tax o B W ST 43 [l
upon disposal of investment 2 JEIERFIIH (2t
properties recognised HoAh 4 T Wi i PR )
in other comprehensive
income - (2,211) - (2,211)
At 31 December 2013 TSR
+—_HA=+—H 331 7,316 - 7,647
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34.

35.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$85,415,000 (2012:
HK$51,862,000) available for offset against future profits
in respect of the Korea Branch and the PRC subsidiaries,
which will expire in 2016, subject to the approval and
confirmation by the relevant tax authorities. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$47,150,000 (2012: HK$54,817,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, effective from 1 January
2008, the Company is subject to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for any dividend payment from its PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$212,000 (2012: HK$64,000) in respect of temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC of approximately
HK$4,239,000 (2012: HK$1,280,000) have not been
recognised as the Company is able to control the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that those profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable in June 2015.

The effective interest rate of the amounts due to ultimate
holding company and the director is 5% per annum.

34.

35.

HEBLIH (47)

AR > AR B A R A W) K
128 o JB 2 ) 2 A B TS 1R 485,415,000

5 JT ( *?**E‘M%mm%ﬁ>ﬁ
et TE NSRS MR BB AR
REAIL I S TERE o PR I 92 T A 2 ik ) 2

TR SO AL b o Bl H e TR T RR R
B o

I AE B IH

T HE IR ZIK%E%T?DW@H—#%%E%
Mwmm%m % — T4F 1 54,817,000
ZIS%EH%%EJEF-ZT?D@EE&H%%%EH%
%ﬁf‘@ﬁﬁlﬁ‘,‘é% > H H BB U A A
EISERIEIGIL T P S P DN

M OoFEE/NE—H—HE > REPRMCZE
FIRAS B » A% A ZE 3 Hh 1B B 8 2 W) i 2
A5F Z AT ] B 245 5% 22 FH F0BL R ) 1 o
i o Slf7 4t B 7E v 5 2 2 B IS N W 2 R
o3 B 25 A7 B 2 B IR 2 B 4 4,239,000 s
JC (& — T4 01,280,000 #k TT) i REIE
FEFd T & 15 49 212,000 0T (& — AR
64,000 #57T) » TR 2 A O ) 1 ) % S5 e
NAEIZ BB > HEREAEET R
AR il % 55 T R

W Ao} e R P B s W) Sk
FEEKTE TR - B MR T E R
NHNERE o

JRE st i B4R B N ) B S R 2 R R
By FERR 5% o



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 & W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 ~F—=4F+ - H=1—H IL4FE

—z-=#4% 175 1IN

Annual Report 2013

36. SECURED NOTE 36. KR
On 20 November 2013, the Company issued a 13% R oFE-=F A R AT
guaranteed senior secured note due 2014 with aggregate TR AR B AR 5 % 15,000,000
principal amount of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to TG 13% ST I IRA R S 9E (S5 TR 49
approximately HK$116,271,000) (the “Notes”). The Notes 116,271,000 76) ([ 98 ]) o % E EIEH
are guaranteed by two directors of the Company, have a AT H AP E R AIERA - BIHH
maturity term of two years and bear a fixed interest rate of WA FIEFFELII3% EEFH - 5%
13% per annum with interest payable annually in arrears. SRR UL 2 T T EEA
The Notes are secured by, among other things, the land 108,655,000 # JTAF A KA i
and buildings of approximately HK$108,655,000 of the
Group.
The proceeds of approximately US$15,000,000 (equivalent A SR TS R FIA 4 15,000,000 27T (4R
to approximately HK$116,271,000) was used for financing S5 IR #9116,271,000 # 7T) - I Bl E Ui
the acquisition of certain assets pertaining to the operation LT TN B2 K 5 JB A B 8 #E 2 B i T A
of a resort located in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. PRI E SR E -
On date of issue US$000 HK$'000
REEATH T*IT T T
Guaranteed secured note FYELRA I 2 15,000 116,271
In the opinions of the directors of the Company, the AR BB R R AR A SRR B0 B R AR A R
effective interest rate of the secured note approximated to B S R 13% -
the nominal interest rate of 13% per annum.
The carrying amount of the secured note was I e e S I el SRR 2 /1S UE
approximately HK$116,316,000 as at 31 December 2013. PR MR B 4 116,316,000 # TC ©
37. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT 37. RIIMPs 5
OBLIGATIONS
2013 2012
= TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#t THTT
Long service payment obligations AR = 451

The long service payment obligations represent present
value of the obligations under long service payment and
respective actuarial gains. The movement during the
year is the net-off of current service cost and interest on
obligation against long service payment made during the
year. Current service cost and interest on obligation were
recognised during the year and included in employee
benefit expenses.

TS S 40 )5 = R R 4fE 2 RS 5
W dt o A A1 9 A Bl R 0 MRS A %
TR MRS & 8 A4 L I B BURIE LB 2
o WIS A B RSB T A T A X
W AFF AR BARABA S o
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37. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT 37. MRS & (8)

OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Movement for the year ENEH)
2013 2012
- S N S
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 451 690
Current service cost AR AR 72 (241)
Interest cost FERA 25 2
Actuarial gains on obligations LR & (548) -
At 31 December wt+—H—H - 451

Bt A=t HERERER AR

The directors’ assumptions used for accounting purpose as

at 31 December are as follows: R -
2013 2012
% %
Discounted rate applied to R FH IR IR S <2 Ao 3R AT
long service payment obligations ZAEBLAR 2.47%-3.65 % 0.09%
Expected rate of salary increase il 2 TEE I R 4.73% 4.68%
Annual turnover rate for employees B RINI04E R B 4R E
with less than 10 years of service BTk R 10.71% 23.16%
Annual turnover rate for employees AR 104E R B AR
with more than 10 years of service BTkl R 0% 0%
Retirement age RARA 65 65

AL E R RIRH AR =% — =4
e Z = AR A = HAEAT AL
7% A5 A (EL PR LA A [ 7 9 ] 2 22 98 57 T3
il {8 5 B R R A R ] (2% — 2

The Group’s long service payment obligations was
revalued as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The valuations
were carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited (2012: Asset
Appraisals Limited), an independent firm of professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation was o EWERTEBIMARAR) AT o R
arrived at by using projected unit credit method for both B AFBETR] > 5% Ak (B BR T TR R B85 4% R HE 5
years. EAfE o
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38.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
CONTRIBUTIONS

Hong Kong

The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000 (2012: HK$25,000). Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

Korea

Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme under the
National Pension Act (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at a specified rate of the
employees’ monthly income, subject to adjustments and a
cap of monthly income stipulated in the Scheme.

The PRC

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs to the
scheme. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the scheme.

Canada

Employees in Canada participate in a Canada Pension Plan
(the “Plan”) which is a mandatory scheme under Canada
Pension Plan Regulations. The employer and the employees
are required to make a total contribution of 9.9% on the
pensionable earnings, subject to a cap of pensionable
earnings of CAD$51,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$373,000).

38.
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| 1 7 8 Forebase International Holdings Limited 3t B I ¥ ik % R 2 5]

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 &k W Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ —F—=4F+ - H =1+—H IL4FE

39. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 39. B Al RS

The Group received Korean government grants with
proceeds of approximately KRW48,834,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$325,000) to finance the acquisition of
certain plant and equipment of the discontinued operations
through the acquisition of a subsidiary in 2009. The grant is
initially measured at its fair value. The benefit derived from
such grant was recognised as a deduction from carrying
amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and will be recognised in profit or
loss on the same basis as depreciation for the related plant
and equipment. Such a government grant is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method at
the end of reporting period. During the year ended 31
December 2012, government grant of approximately
HK$61,000 has been recognised in the loss for the period
from discontinued operations (Note 12).

In December 2011, the Group also received PRC
government grants with proceeds of RMB543,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$670,000) to finance the
development of new software system of the continuing
operations. The grant, which is included in trade and other
payables, is initially measured at its fair value. The benefit
derived from such grant will be recognised in profit or loss
on the same basis as amortisation of the related software.
Such a government grant is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method at the end of reporting
period. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
government grant of approximately HK$51,000 (2012:
HK$67,000) has been recognised and included in other
income and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

7 45 ) i I BB RT M B 2 B TEL A B
48,834,000 ¥ (FHE 74 % 325,000 7T) >
B BT IAFUE— B AR DA
BB YU O A RO S 2 TR Sk
5 o RS IR A RAE AR E - 30H
JITEE A 2 A 4 A S BB AR 0 3 e R
2 R BE L MR T (U D o I 9 A B %W@
%ﬁ& S HEA T I8 2 A ] Ve A 1 £
FTHERR o ARG HAR » BUF B K uE%ﬂ
%%#%%&$ﬁ$ HE_F—F
T A=+ —HIEFE > 461,000 C2
B RERG OO SE B s Rk A O 4IRS
W 2 R AR 2 EE (e 12) -

R OF——E+ A AREE IR R
R i B 22 30T 49 R 543,000 T (A
ﬁ%%wwm%ﬁ%uEﬁéﬁﬁ%%
Z BB RSV E & o K

Y N AEER A TR o M BEARE ﬁ%
75 Yot R 8 T 45 2 v R B R £ 8 B 2 )
UESEATHERR o 5% UM Al G HF B BT R 3 7
P A A PR R R o R E T F
—ZFE+ A=+ —HIEFEE > 451,000
#IT (TF— T4 67,0009 00) Z B
ol F A 5 A Wi i e JE A 2 T Wi 2 3 0 e

nf"
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40. DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE OF SHARES 40.

IN A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 5
December 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved
the Group Reorganisation which involved the transfer of
shares in a subsidiary carrying on composite components
and unit electronic components operations in Korea and
the PRC to a subsidiary of the Company, Jay Star. Pursuant
to the Group Reorganisation, the Company distributed all
of the ordinary shares in Jay Star to the shareholders of the
Company. Details of the Distribution In Specie are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 17 October 2012
and 11 December 2012 respectively.

As detailed in note 12, on 11 December 2012, the Group
discontinued these operations at the time of disposal of the
Jay Star Group. The net assets of Jay Star Group, at the date

of disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities which were distributed:

Annual Report 2013 —F — = £ H#H ]79 [

Y53 IR i} & 2 w1 ey

IR = F—ZF+ A I H T2 R
el K e AR HEEE EH - 5
o R R B Ry T AN ) — [T
J& /X 7] Jay Star > M % 55 #1858 2 M B 2>
H] YA S o A S48 S e M B T
TIOUFERs o MRRIEEEELMH > AL A
¥ Jay Star 2= B 28 73 IR T A A BOR.
A BB 53R Z 5615 50 IR A w ik —
F—THH PR R CF T TN
T HEERZ A -

AR EE 12 2Rk > R T F T TA
t—H o AL Jay Star 5 B R 1L
W55 WS o Jay Star SREIA W H 2 EE
FEWT

FERTIRZ EE KA

11/12/2012
gy
+-A+—H
HK$'000
TH#TT

Property, plant and equipment LYE B Y G 166,542
Intangible asset T 9,727
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, IEEY)E - Wl X

plant and equipment d P 2,335
Inventories 8 29,597
Trade and other receivables JRENS 'L 5 B AR 48,408
Bank balances and cash RATHE R M Bl 7,731
Trade and other payables JREAT B8 5 e HAB AR K (32,749)
Amount due to a former shareholder A — 4 AT SR R 3K (53,578)
Bank borrowings — due within one year HATHE - —F R (64,431)
Deferred tax liabilities R AL TH A AR (1,317)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIBHE A (492)
Net assets attributable to the Group ASE E A 2 TR T

distributed to the shareholders JR R 2 111,773
Net cash outflow arising on the BB o Dk A 2

Distribution In Specie: BlE@:
Bank balances and cash disposal of HERATR R LBl 7,731
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41.

42,

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired certain property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$108,713,000 settled by issuing a secured
note. In addition, interest of approximately US$975,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,558,000) was withheld
by the note holders upon the issuance of the secured note.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain interests
in subsidiaries have been distributed to the shareholders
of the Company. Details of the distribution are set out in
notes 12, 16 and 40.

OPERATING LEASES

(@) The Group and the Company as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had commitments for future minimum

41.

42.

FEIFBERH

WEE-F =4+ _H=1+—HIL¥F
BE > ALY T - A A
#7108,713,000 #5 T > 8 BE 1T A HEIH 98
F A o BLAk - £1975,000 9550 (FHAE
#17,558,000 %5 70) 2 Fl B A A HE 22 95
RS S PN

MME_F— "4+ -H=1+—HIF
B AT HHE A F 2 M AR IR T AN H]
B o IR wE1E 2 Al S iR i eE 12 ~ 16
J 40 o

MEHE

(@) ARG B A wE R R LA

TR IR - AR ) A RARTEAS
AT R ER RS B A AR B AT 2 B AR

lease payments under non-cancellable operating BHIHZRPEWT -
leases which fall due as follows:
The Group The Company
N | Y, /|
2013 2012 2013 2012
N St o e - R St —E -
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T
Within one year —AE R 6,841 4,055 1,692 294
In the second to fifth year A28 4%
inclusive B (B
H R W4E) 15,449 6,359 1,073 -
22,290 10,414 2,765 294

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables

by the Group and the Company for certain of its

office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average

term of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively. Rentals are fixed for an
average of remaining 5 years and 2 years for the
Group and the Company respectively.

Re R EIOR IS AN SR I SAS 2 )l
THAZEW L A A - ALK
A ) 2 R A REE T AR 124 2 1 23 Al
INAE S AR > ARG B S A o ) 2 A
&0 98 R A3 AR S WA o
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42. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

(b) The Group and the Company as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$1,662,000 (2012: HK$2,078,000).
The property is expected to generate rental yields of

5.6% (2012: 6.1%) per annum on an ongoing basis.
All of properties held have committed tenants for the

next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease receipts which fall

due as follows:

42,
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(b) AHE M B A w2 LA
A A BE T iR 2 W) S AR

551,662,000 T ( —

F—

2,078,000 # JC) o TH W ¥ 3 ] 5 48
WA 4 4E K 5.6% (& — T
6.1%) o ZEBIIFEAE Z YR KK —

ERAER

R AR A B S AR w2 B
Fal#z AR ENT -

The Group The Company
ALH AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E = TE—TAE —EF = SR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T TH#TT
Within one year —&EA 1,293 1,490 = 252
In the second to fifth year — JA%E _4F %
inclusive 5 AR (R4

HEWAF) 249 227 - -
1,542 1,717 - 252
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43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BAANE
The Group The Company
AEH AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R e e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T THETT
Capital expenditure in respect 75 B 5 HIK
of the acquisition of property, I H %
plant and equipment L AT A0 {H i AR A
contracted for but not WHBS R R
provided for in the A - A
financial statements Bt 2 EA 88 - -

44.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 16 June 2003 expired on 15 June 2013.
The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite,
among other eligible participants, employees of the Group
(including directors of any member of the Group), advisers
and consultants, to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the
Company. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years ending on 2 June 2023, after which no
further options can be granted.

44. DAty 2o BB 2 AT 3K AE 5

AR AN ZF T AR H AN H R
JEHERTE ([E5 5T ]) SR =T —=4F<A
I H e o REALNF] IR —F—=
RN A = SR AR R i BCRE R # ([ st
# 1) o Ao E SRR ) (4
fes BB HE) REMRER (A AL
AR A B 3 W 2 #E5) ~ B Bty A
P& AN I BOE 2 24 - DIGR A A Ik
1 o & WS BHES IRE S A R — it
JB 0.1 #ICZ A R < et A 0
HHE BREF D =4FANA IR K
FRAN AT RS N A
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44.

45.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 under
the Old Scheme and the New Scheme. In addition, as of 31
December 2013 and 2012, no share option under the share
options scheme were outstanding under the Old Scheme
and the New Scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with shareholders

During the year, the Group entered into the following

44.

45.
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PAJB i o JE 8 2 JBLAS ) sk 52 5

(#8)

WRE =R F -t
St BRI S T A
s BT AT BB 8 - AT R SR
B F SRR E L
S B IS T AR B ) 2
Ui LESH R

HEREEANLZS

B A B 155 ke HAt 3t Oy P 45 8% 2 28 5 b
LB N ERBHEAN 2L -

(@ HBRZRZS
TRARAL > 7B B BELA 3 w2 BOR

transactions with Kwang Sung Korea, a former major EDERFT LT S
shareholder of the Company:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Sales of finished goods B 908 241
Referral commission paid/payable AT HEAT A 4 6 198
Subcontracting fee paid/payable O AT 2 N 558

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business and were on normal
commercial terms.

KA ZEERE LIRS AR
B T RO TP E 96 R
HEAT o

“z-=44% 183 N
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45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

@)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other

. HRBEANLZRS ()

(b) BHAMPIEAN L2
() FEEMAEZME

AL T A I B R A

members of key management during the year N2 & HIUT
was as follows:

2013 2012
—g= s
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Short-term benefits SR B AR A 9,245 9,864
Post-employment benefits RN A% A A1) 41 183
9,286 10,047

(i)

The remuneration of directors and key
executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

During the year, the Group paid a consultancy
fee of approximately HK$69,000 (2012:
HK$510,000) to Mr. Yang Han Ho, a close
family member of Mr. Yang, a director (2012: a
director and a shareholder) of the Company.
No consultancy fee was outstanding at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

46. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to current year’s presentation, which included (i)
bank balances and cash with an amount of approximately
HK$10,007,000 have been reclassified to restricted bank
deposits, (ii) other income and gains with an amount of
approximately HK$4,292,000 have been reclassified to
change in fair value of investment properties and (iii) other
operating expenses with an amount of approximately
HK$142,000 have been reclassified to other income and

gains.

EE M EEATBNE Z MY
P & B 8 R
T35 BE T E o

(i) AN > ALEE AN FE
H(ZFE - EHIFRR)
e 5fe e — 4498 B Yang Han Ho
%iiﬁ@%ﬁ%@mm%ﬁ
(=& — 4 : 510,000 4 C)
N_FE-=ZFERC ?—4$
+ A = H G R A
Z@Fﬂﬁ%"

46. R

#T R EE C ERE DR AR
B 25 AT OM|ITE R AR AL
10,007,000 #5 7C O 5581 43 88 7 = R il 4R A7
Tk » (i) o b e A % i 35 #94,292,000 15
TLOHEB B ATEWEZ A RMEEEE)

T (i) HAh 28 %25 B 52 47 142,000 5 T B 558
IR HA A Bl s -
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ZEENFE R -FE F——4 F-F F-=

Consolidated Statement  Zi & {E% &

of Profit or Loss and Ho At 4 1)

other comprehensive Lk

income (HK$’000) (F#5)
Revenue g 592,529 680,793 558,528 475,174 298,722
Profit (loss) from operations #8&i Fll (F518) 3,308 14,018 (57,389) (51,187) (55,753)
Profit (loss) after taxation — [RFifEAN T

and attributable to WA AELS

owners of the Company A (E51R) (35,774) 8,087 (52,946) (52,339) (51,656)
Basic earnings (loss) B 1 A

per share — HK cents (f518) — w1l (11.13) 250 (16.35) (16.16) (15.95)
Diluted earnings (loss) T SR A 2 A

per share — HK cents (f518) — w41l (11.13) 250 (16.35) (16.16) (15.95)
Consolidated Statement 4B IRME

of Financial Position (F#o)

(HK$’000)
Non-current assets FERmEEE 104,708 163,708 220,113 80,110 166,682
Current assets LB 390,091 366,194 332,908 202,112 181,688
Current liabilities b UB=Ki (128,360)  (141,586)  (215,813) (104,818) (70,853)
Net current assets L E) R 261,731 224,608 117,095 97,294 110,835
Long-term liabilities FETLE) A K (11,860) (14,332) (13,191) (10,634)  (157,450)
Net assets B TE 354,579 373,984 324,017 166,770 120,067
Share Information (HK$) {r&R (#0)
Highest share price H e A $2.70 $0.98 $0.76 $1.61 $2.44
Lowest share price AR E $0.33 $0.41 $0.21 $0.38 $0.99
Year end closing share price 4 i 7 & $0.41 $0.65 $0.60 $0.98 $1.82
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Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shen Ke
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FA A S

Mr. Li Zhi RSt

Mr. Xu Li Jian RO BRI
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Mr.Yang Jai Sung* RIER e
Mr. Lee Kyu Young* &SRS e o
Mr. Hong Sang Joon HEAEHESE R
Non-executive director FHiTES
Mr.Yang Ho Sung (Chairman)* e A () *
Independent non-executive directors B RATEF
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Dr. JiangYing" A B A

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan” AR & 1"
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann® G e
Dr. Han Byung Joon* FEPITET A*
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Mr. Kim Chan Su* SFER T
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Mr. Shen Ke* FA Al S A
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Mr. Kim Chan Su* R
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon* G IE R
Dr. Han Byung Joon* TPV A
Mr.Yang Ho Sung* ik B A ¢
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Lei”

Dr. JiangYing’

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan”

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Mr.Yang Jai Sung*

INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

Mr.Yu Lei"

Dr. JiangYing"

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan”

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

resigned on 7 January 2013

appointed on 7 January 2013

appointed on 18 January 2013

ceased to be the chairman of the Executive Committee and remained
as one of its members on 18 January 2013

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

(resigned with effect from 21 August 2013)
Mr. Tang Sze Lok

(appointed with effect from 21 August 2013)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

(up to 20 August 2013)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

(up to 20 August 2013)
Mr. Leung Kin Pang

(from 21 August 2013)
Mr. Tang Sze Lok

(from 21 August 2013)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Up to 20 August 2013:

Units 208-209, 2/F., Bio-Informatics Centre
No. 2 Science Park West Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong

>+ % oy

From 21 August 2013:
Room 3805, 38/F.,
The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Progressive Corporate Services Limited
Room 1110, 11/F., 113 Argyle Street
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2783 8736

Fax: (852) 2783 8589

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2310

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.kse.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

Announcement of 2013 Final Results
21 March 2014

Closure of Register of Members
28 to 30 May 2014 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
30 May 2014
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